WINE'S LINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Bt W EBERRERARLSE
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited fiability)

(RHEASHEBEAMBRLZARALA)
Stock Code | B&#31L5% : 8509

2025

Annual Report
F




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited (the
"Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the "Year”).

The business of the Group primarily involves the wholesale and
retail of a wide spectrum of wine products and other alcoholic
beverages in Hong Kong. The Group has a comprehensive
product portfolio consisting of (i) wine products such as
premium collectible red wine, i.e. red wine with selling prices
at or above HK$1,000 per bottle (the “Premium Collectible
Red Wine"), fine red wine and white wine; (ii) other alcoholic
beverages such as champagne, whisky and sake; and (iii)
wine accessory products such as wine decanters, wine glasses
and wine openers, for customers’ selection. The Group also
develops alcoholic beverages under its self-owned brands.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 33.6% from
approximately HK$222.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 to approximately HK$147.7 million for the Year. Profit
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$16.3 million (2022:
HK$20.6 million), representing a decrease of approximately
20.6% from the year ended 31 March 2022. Profit for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$16.6 million (2022: HK$21.2 million). The
decrease in revenue and profit was mainly caused by the
decrease in demand for our products as a result of external
challenges from (i) the global economic downturn; (ii) the
tightening monetary policy executed worldwide; and (iii) the
enforcement actions on various anti-epidemic measures due to
the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

PROSPECTS

To accelerate the advantages of the Group and develop
sustainable future for our business, we are strengthening our
operation efficiency, including optimising work processes and
continuing enhancement in ERP system and other management
system. The Group has already established a retail store in a
prime location in Kowloon at the end of 2018. We are also
enriching the Group’s product portfolio with wineries to offer
more selection to the market, especially from French regions.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid external challenges, the Group
remains steadfast in expanding our customer bases and supply
channels, diversifying our business and grasping opportunities
at the existing and emerging markets through (i) ongoing
development of existing wholesale and retail business of wine
products and other alcoholic beverages; and (ii) exploring
business opportunities with potential profitability to broaden
source of income. The Group aims to continue strengthening
the leading position in the wine industry in Hong Kong, and
at the same time, penetrating the Group’s market share into
different countries worldwide.

NOTE OF APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of the business partners, customers, suppliers
and the shareholders for their continuous support. | would
also like to express my sincere appreciation to the Group’s
management and staff for their commitment and dedication.

Yeung Chi Hung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business of the Group primarily involves the wholesale and
retail of a wide spectrum of wine products and other alcoholic
beverages in Hong Kong. The Group has a comprehensive
product portfolio consisting of (i) wine products such as
premium collectible red wine, i.e. red wine with selling prices
at HK$1,000 or above per bottle (the “Premium Collectible
Red Wine"), fine red wine and white wine; (ii) other alcoholic
beverages such as champagne, whisky and sake; and (iii)
wine accessory products such as wine decanters, wine glasses
and wine openers, for customers’ selection. The Group also
develops alcoholic beverages under its self-owned brands.

During the Year, the Group faced difficulties in operating its
wine business under external challenges from (i) the global
economic downturn; (ii) the tightening monetary policy
executed worldwide; and (iii) the enforcement actions on
various anti-epidemic measures due to the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in both China and
Hong Kong (altogether, the “External Challenges”). Although
the demand in both premium collectible wine and fine wine
segments were improved compared to the first half of the year,
they were still weak compared to previous years and affected
the Group's revenue and gross profit. Therefore, the Group
actively seeks to alter product segments with good potential
and shifted our focus to develop products under its self-owned
brands during the Year. The Board believes that the Group can
seize the opportunity arising from the different trends in the
wine industry in a long term.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 33.6%
from approximately HK$222.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2022 to approximately HK$147.7 million for the Year.
The decrease was primarily caused by the decrease in demand
for our premium collectible wine and fine wine as affected by
the External Challenges.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of the procurement of wine
products and other alcoholic beverages from the suppliers.
The Group recognises cost of sales upon the conclusion of a
sales transaction. The cost of sales decreased by approximately
43.5% from approximately HK$155.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$88.0 million for
the Year. The decrease in cost of sales was directly correlated
with the decrease in revenue for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit represents revenue less cost of sales. For the
Year, the gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
10.3% from approximately HK$66.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$59.7 million.

The overall gross profit margin increased and amounted to
approximately 29.9% and approximately 40.4% for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, respectively. The Group
recorded a relatively higher gross profit margin during the Year
mainly due to the increase in gross profit margin on the sales
of other alcoholic beverages of certain self-owned brand.

Other income

Other income of the Group consisted primarily of (i) bank
interest generated from the bank balances; (ii) government
grant; and (iii) sundry income. Other income decreased from
approximately HK$3.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 to approximately HK$0.9 million for the Year, which
was mainly contributed by the income derived from the one-
off provision of services during the year ended 31 March 2022
while there was no such income during the Year.

Other gains and losses, net

The Group recorded net gains of approximately HK$34,000
and net losses of approximately HK$0.1 million for the Year
and the year ended 31 March 2022, respectively.

The net gains or losses mainly consisted of the net exchange
gains and losses arising from the foreign currency fluctuations
in respect of the foreign currency denominated trust receipt
loans for the settlement of wine product purchased from the
overseas suppliers.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$16.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 to approximately HK$12.4 million for the Year. This
decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in expenses
in relation to frontline sales and marketing activities during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$23.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 to approximately HK$21.7 million for the Year. This
decrease was attributable to the combined effect of the
decrease in legal and professional fees and the increase in
expense and depreciation related to the property.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$2.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$5.8
million for the Year. This increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in the interest on bank borrowings for the Year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group decreased by approximately
11.2% from approximately HK$5.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$5.0 million for the
Year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
estimated assessable profit for the Year compared against the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company and total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to owners of the Company

For the reasons mentioned above, profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company and total
comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$16.6 million
(2022: approximately HK$21.2 million) and approximately
HK$16.6 million (2022: approximately HK$21.2 million),
respectively.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) for the Year (2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group’s operation and capital
requirements were financed principally through a combination
of cash flow generated from the operating activities and
bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, the Group
had net current assets of approximately HK$96.8 million
and approximately HK$110.3 million, respectively, including
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$5.8 million and
approximately HK$5.8 million respectively. The Group’s current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) increased
from approximately 1.6 as at 31 March 2022 to approximately
1.7 as at 31 March 2023 mainly due to the combined effect of
the decrease in inventories, the increase in deposits paid to the
suppliers and the increase in bank borrowings.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings
(including bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and lease
liabilities) by total equity as at the end of the Year. The Group’s
gearing ratio were approximately 53.4% and approximately
54.9% as at 31 March 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Details of bank borrowings and bank overdrafts of the Group
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies. The Group's
management performs an ongoing credit evaluation of the
financial conditions of the customers in order to reduce the
Group's exposure of credit risk. In addition to these ongoing
credit evaluations, the Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitment. As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s capital
commitments were primarily related to the purchase of
property and equipment which amounted to approximately
HK$0.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no changes in the capital structure of the
Group during the Year. The share capital of the Company only
comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had 400,000,000 shares
in issue.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, there were no significant investments
held by the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT
VENTURES

As at 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Group did not have any material acquisition or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in (i) the prospectus of the Company
dated 29 December 2017 (the "Prospectus”); (ii) the annual
reports of the Company for the years ended 31 March 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022; (iii) the supplemental announcement
of the Company dated 14 August 2020; and (iv) the
announcement of the Company dated 10 June 2022 in relation
to the use of proceeds, the Group currently has no other plan
for material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2022 and 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is subject to relatively larger exposure to foreign
currency risk as the Group has foreign currency denominated
trust receipt loans for the settlement of the wine product
purchases from suppliers outside of Hong Kong. The Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk may affect its results of
operations and financial position.

The Group recognises the importance of managing the foreign
currency exchange risk exposure. To this end, the Group has
ceased holding any pledged bank deposits in foreign currencies
since October 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

The finance and accounts team of the Group is in charge
of implementing the internal control measures on foreign
currency risk. This team monitors the exposure to foreign
currency risk with reference to, among other things, (i) the
monthly and annual cash flow forecasts; (ii) historical cash
flows; (iii) actual receivables; (iv) sales orders; (v) payables; (vi)
purchase orders; and (vii) the potential hedging plans.

In respect of the purchases denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group manages the associated foreign currency exchange
risk exposure by closely monitoring the movement of foreign
currency exchange rates and performing regular reviews of
the net foreign exchange exposure. The Group has established
a tracking and reporting system which records the latest
exchange rate fluctuation information to enable the Group to
effectively monitor the exposure to exchange rate risks and
adjust the procurement strategy accordingly. For example, if
there is an appreciation in Euro, the Group may choose to
procure French red wine products from suppliers in the United
Kingdom or Switzerland instead of France to minimise the
foreign currency risk exposure. The Group does not currently
have a foreign currency hedging policy. In the event of any
change in circumstances leading the Group to believe that the
exposure to foreign currency risk has heightened, the Group
will, upon approval by the Company’s investment management
committee, implement necessary measures and policies
to manage such risk, for example by entering into foreign
currency hedging transactions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of employees were 45 and 30 as at 31
March 2022 and 2023, respectively. The Group's standard
remuneration package includes base salary, discretionary
bonus, medical insurance and contributions to retirement
schemes. For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023, the
Group’s total employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$14.9 million and
approximately HK$12.2 million, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Remuneration package is determined in light of the
employees’ qualification, position and seniority. To ensure
the remuneration package remains competitive, the Group
conducts annual assessment on each employee’s remuneration
package.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance
with such requirements. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material respects
during the Year.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO") for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts
attributable to its operational activities in order to minimise
these impacts if possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets
of the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and regularly reviews the
existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to the customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able
to establish trusting and long-standing business relationships
with the major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and
develops long-term and stable relationships with the suppliers.
During the Year, there was no material dispute or disagreement
between the Group and its customers or its suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEFWE S

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS STRATEGIES WITH LB EREREREELETI

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS AND USE OF RIFBRERE
PROCEEDS
Amount of Revised
planned use allocation of
of the use of As at
Planned use of net proceeds ot " net proceeds  net proceeds 31 March 2023
FEREFRE KBIZHE
BE NEREAR
FBREFECRERR WaY Rgz&H N ZEZ=f=ZH=+-H
Utilised
amount of Unutilised
net proceeds amount of
(accumulated) net proceeds
FBREFRE
2 FRRERE
EBHRAEE 2
(&5h) KEAEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B&EET H & &5 &5
Strengthen the warehouse storage 389 389 389 -
capability Mete2
%R ETE 2
Expand the retail network in Hong Kong 233 21.2 21.2 -
through the establishment of a new retail
store and a new flagship store Mot
RN BEERIEREABRNES
BB )
General working capital 2.0 4.1 4.1 -
—REEED
64.2 64.2 64.2 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes:

1. Except for change of planned use of net proceeds of HK$2.1
million as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
10 June 2022, the Board currently has no intention to change
the planned use of net proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus,
the 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 annual reports.

2. On 17 December 2021, the Group has completed the acquisition
of a property in Kwun Tong as its self-owned warehouse.

3. The Company has opened a retail store in Tsim Sha Tsui in
the end of 2018. The Board has resolved on 10 June 2022 to
change the unutilised net proceeds to general working capital.
Details of the change in use of proceeds, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 June 2022.

4. Figures as shown in this table have been subject to rounding
adjustments and are approximate only.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully
listed on GEM on 12 January 2018 (the “Listing Date”). The
Board considers that such public listing status on the Stock
Exchange is beneficial to the Company and the shareholders
as a whole as the listing status on the Stock Exchange is a
complementary way of advertising the Group which reinforces
the corporate profile and market recognition. In addition,
the creditworthiness will be enhanced from the suppliers’
perspective, which may in turn allow the Group to have
greater bargaining power over negotiations to bargain for
longer trade and credit terms. It also enables the Group to gain
direct access to the capital market to raise funds for future
expansion.

Ny 5145 T M A R

THEFWE S

Wizt -

1. REARRAPAE-ZE-_—_FAt+HZ
NEMKRE - WAEFEFE21888
TERBERSIN EFEHNETER
BRER  —E—NF ZZTFF . =
T ER T —FERFAREZAE
RIBFE TR -

2. WZZEZ—F+-A++H KEED®
BRUEEE—TEmMEEAHARAE -

3. ARFBERZZT-NFERELAPEBARET
EE -BEBREER T _FNA+HR
HEABEBREFEARERARE
—MEEES  c AT IIERR Y
HIE MA2HARRBBAT - —_F
ATHZRAE -

4. ZEBATHEFENE  BERNOE-

RERT=

Aprlfty (T ) ER=F—N\F—H
+=B (EmBEH)) KIEGEM £ °
EXZEeRR BB AR MY
ARBAEzm - MBERME AR ZHRER
EREBMIZMz Ft RS ERNEE 2
MR BBEXNBERTERR
Mo tbsh - RHERMARNS - AKE
ZERAERRER  BHAEEERD
TERREANZEERS  EHEFREER
MR 5 REEGRK - AN AKEER
EABARTS  URRKIBRREEES ©

—E-=5EH

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

During the Year, the Group has made steady progress in
refining and expanding its business, putting more emphasis on
diversifying and creating new sales channels and expanding its
business geographically. Apart from trading wine products of
well-known chateaus or wineries, the Group has developed its
self-owned brands to diversify the Group’s income streams as
well as to achieve a synergy effect with its existing businesses.
The Group believes that the aforesaid developments will
optimise the business portfolio of the Group and bolster a
sustainable and healthy performance of the Group in the long
run.

The Group has been closely monitoring the development
of the External Challenges and any further uncertainty may
have, and will take a prudent approach and adjust its business
strategies to accommodate the rapid changing environment.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley (E&# % 1), aged 42, was
appointed as executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company on 22 September 2016. She is one of the
founding members of the Group since its establishment in
March 2008. Ms. Shirley Wong is also one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Ms. Shirley Wong is primarily
responsible for the overall management, strategic development
and major business decision-making of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Shirley Wong worked for
ABN-AMRO Bank N.V., Hong Kong, as a consumer banking
management trainee in 2005 where she was primarily
responsible for daily operation in the consumer banking
department. Ms. Shirley Wong has been a director as well
as one of the shareholders of Dynasty International Group
Holdings Limited, a company engaging in trading of premium
gifts, since 2006 where she was primarily responsible for
operation, management and strategic planning of the
business.

Ms. Shirley Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree of science
in economics in June 2003 and her master’s degree of science
in economics and econometrics in January 2005 from the
University of Bristol in the United Kingdom. Ms. Shirley Wong
is the spouse of Mr. Ting Chi Wai Roy ("Mr. Roy Ting") and
daughter of Ms. Yeung Chi Hung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREERREE

Mr. Chan Sze Tung (BR&#@%4%E), aged 35, joined the
Group in June 2012 as sales and marketing assistant where
he was primarily responsible for advising customers on
products selection and performing daily administrative tasks
of the sales and marketing department. He was transferred
to the operations department in April 2013 as an operation
officer and was primarily responsible for managing the
Group's logistics and warehousing and providing support
to operational issues and compiling records and reports
for various departments. He was promoted as an assistant
operation manager in April 2014 and further promoted as
the operation manager in April 2015 where he was primarily
responsible for operations management and strategic planning
and development of the Group’s business. He was further
promoted as a vice president of operations and administration
of the Group in April 2016. He was appointed as executive
Director and compliance officer of the Company pursuant
to Rule 5.19 of the GEM Listing Rules on 3 January 2017.
Mr. Chan has taken a role as a vice president of Project
Development of the Group since April 2018 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing various projects aimed for future
development of the Group. He was appointed as Chief
Operating Officer and a member of investment management
committee of the Company with effect from 1 December 2021
and 31 May 2022, respectively.

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor of arts degree in marketing
and public relations from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in October 2011. Mr. Chan also obtained an executive
diploma in negotiation from the Institute of Crisis and Risk
Management in December 2016 where he was awarded as a
certified strategic negotiator. In September 2020, Mr. Chan
obtained a master’s degree of Business Administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Furthermore, he has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
January 2022.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

PREMEE 35 RZTE—ZF <A
MAREBETHEEREHEYE 28
EREFPIREABNBRERNEZIUANE
EEBHEHEREHTINBETEHRER - &
RZTE—=FHABEABREZELEETE
EXE FEEEEEVRNLAE Wit
ZEMNEESETEUNASERRLRER
HYE FR_ZE—NENAESHAS
BREHE  WR T —HEN A EE—
SEFAELERE TEAEAREEER
MEEE  BEMERERER RNZF
—NFOA FEE—FPEARBLIEEZ
EERITHEIRE RZT—+tF—A=
H: REBEGEMEMMRAIFES191& - KE
FEABRRRRATEERER A - R
EFEZE - N\FUARETIAEEER %
RIABBHT T EZEEEEEEELASE K
KERTEIEER - REZXTAREREE
ERARRKREEEZEENXKE  HHlA
%+ -_A—HKZ-ZE--%FA
—t+—HEEK-

BREENR-_ZE——F+HARMEHEERETIK
BOmigEHEEALBEREXZELEM - K
EENPRZZE—R"F+ZARGEHERR
M EEBENRABEETHRCUR - W&
BERARAIKBEAAE R _T_TFN
A BEAREEABIAETIHEIRE
TEM I BT —F— A ®
REREEEG2EE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Chi Hung (B&A X L), s8.s, 885, P, aged
72, was appointed as non-executive Director of the Company
on 3 January 2017. She is primarily responsible for advising
on the strategy, performance and resources of the Group.
She also acts as the chairman of the Board and chairman
of the Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the Company’s remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).

Ms. Yeung founded Dynasty International Group Holdings
Limited, a company engaging in trading of premium gifts, in
November 2006 where she has been the director and general
manager since then and has been primarily responsible for
overseeing the corporate governance and internal control
of such company. She has been the director of Manikind
International Limited, a company engaging in investment
holding and provision of motor vehicle licences, since May
2005 where she is responsible for making major business
decisions and overall business strategies. Ms. Yeung is also
the director and chairman of Kai Yeung Jewellery Limited, a
company engaging in jewellery trading, being responsible for
making major business decision-making and overall business
strategies development since April 1993.

Ms. Yeung obtained a diploma in telecommunications from the
South China University of Technology in the PRC in 1975.

Ms. Yeung is an active participant in public and social services
and the table below sets forth her major engagements:

EFRSREEREE

FHITES

BEAL L  sBs,BB8S, 4P 728 BT
E—+F—A=ZHEZEALTRABIZERTT
EFZ -FEIZAERASE 2R KRR
REFRREERRZ HAHEETEEIFRR
ARRIRZEZEEE ([RBREEE]) £FEMN
EARRFMEES ([FEZE=E]) 2K

=
B o

RZZBZERF+—A BRIAREGE
EZERARAE (—HAREELERRES
ZRA) Blt—EHETRERRELRE
TEREEEZRRZERE AR AEE
E-B_TTRFHAR R—ELES
MNEBBRBERAR (—RAREREZERK
RESEMRBZAR) 2EF BEXE
EBRRRBEEBEE - B—LN=F
AR BRI —EHEEFAREEN
ERAR (—RAEREZSHZRR) <&
ERIF BAEIBEBRRMEEBERH
REGHR

BREIN—NWEAFETERERETRE
HSEMUR

BRLEBSEAR TGRS - TRHE
SRS 2 TR

Position Associations/Organisations Service period

B =0 <K R 75 5 58

Member National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political March 2013 to February 2023
Consultative Conference

%8 TRARBAHEEZEEHEES H-T—=F=A%

—E-=%—"H

Member Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan Affairs Committee March 2013 to February 2023
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREERREE

Position Associations/Organisations Service period

Bifz A=t PR %5 & 58

Representative All-China Women's Federation Association 1998 to 2003

(A5 hEFPEFELMES H—ANANEE_ZTZ=F

Executive Committee 2003 to present
Member

HE m-EE=FES

Chairman Fraternity Association of HK Henan 2021 to present

TE BB M HES H-_T_—F%

Director Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank June 2014 to present

HeE BEENENEFEE H-ZT—NF AZES

Vice Chairman & Guangdong Community Organisations 2005 to 2014

Secretary General

BIEFEFRMER R

Life Honorary President
KEEE

President Hong Kong Girl Guides, Wong Tai Sin District

gk EEREEEANIDE

Chairman

53

President
gr

Ms. Yeung is the mother of Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley and the
mother-in-law of Mr. Roy Ting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon (B3 5E4.), aged 51, was
appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 December 2021. He is the chairman of
Investment Management Committee and a member of the
Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Simon Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in Science (Business
Administration) from University of Southern California. He
has been a director of each of Vimchamp Garments Limited,
a company primarily engaging in the garments and fashion
industry and Vimchamp Holdings Limited, a company primarily
engaging in the investments and development industry since
1994 and 2008 respectively, where he is responsible for the
business developments and sales operations.

Mr. Simon Chan had been a director of Circus 212 Limited
during the period from 2013 to 2016 and DOS Dental
Limited during the period from 2015 to 2018, where he was
responsible for their business developments and marketing
operations.

Mr. Simon Chan is currently a member of the HKSAR
Administration Appeals Board and the HKSAR Non-local Higher
and Professional Education Appeal Board, and the chairman
of Yan Chai Hospital CIS Primary School (Management
Board) and a director of the Hong Kong Racehorse Owners
Association Charitable Foundation. He was a member of each
of the HKSAR Home Affairs Department (ESR Programme
Advisory Board), the HKSAR Home Affairs Bureau Appeal
Board (Amusement Game Centres), the HKSAR Commerce
and Economic Department (Textile Advisory Board), Lingnan
University Advisory Board (Office of Service Learning), the
chairman of Education Development Foundation Association
and a member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (Zhuhai) during the period from 2008 to 2016.

Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie v+, J.r (BR 8 3 2z L), aged 54,
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 13 June 2019. She is a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Ms.
Chan obtained her Bachelor degree in Laws and Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1991
and 1992 respectively. She is the founder and managing
partner of CMK lawyers, a law firm in Hong Kong, and has
over 28 years of experience in providing legal advices and
services as a solicitor in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan is also a Greater
Bay Area lawyer.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREERREE

Ms. Chan is an independent non-executive director of each
of China State Construction Development Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 830); Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
392) and Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2689).

Ms. Chan is an accredited mediator and a China-appointed
attesting officer in Hong Kong. She is also the founding
president of The Small and Medium Law Firms Association
of Hong Kong. Furthermore, Ms. Chan is a Specially Invited
Mediator of Guangdong Court for Cross-border Commercial
Dispute Resolution in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, a Mediator of Shenzhen Qianhai
International Commercial Mediation Centre and an Arbitrator
of China Guangzhou Arbitration Commission, Shenzhen Court
of International Arbitration, Qingdao Arbitration Commission
and South China International Arbitration Centre (Hong Kong).

Ms. Chan has also undertaken various community positions
in Hong Kong including being a member of Ex-office member
of Election Committee and Chairman of Appeal Tribunal
Panel (Building Ordinance). Ms. Chan was awarded the
Medal of Honor in 2012 and Justice of the Peace in 2015 by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. She was also conferred with Honorary Fellow by City
University of Hong Kong in 2013. Ms. Chan was elected as a
Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the
PRC (the 13th session) in 2017, an executive member of the
All-China Women'’s Federation Executive Committee in 2018
and a president of All-China Women'’s Federation Hong Kong
Delegates Association Ltd. in 2021 and a Legislative Council
member of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2022.

Mr. Liu Kin Wai (21 554 ), age 41, obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Accounting from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2003 and completed China Environmental Industry
Senior Manager Training Programme (T BEIRBE X S ALK
B AFHEIE) organised by Tsinghua University (BZEKRE) in
December 2016. Mr. Liu has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified
public accountant since 2008 and has more than 18 years
of experience in assurance services and financial, capital
management and company secretarial works.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

From 2004 to 2015, he worked in an international assurance
firm with last position as a senior manager. From May 2015 to
September 2016, he had served as a senior manager of Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 371), and from
September 2016 to September 2019, he had served as the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Shandong Hi-
Speed New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Beijing
Enterprises Clean Energy Group Limited), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1250).

Mr. Liu is currently the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Orient Victory Smart Urban Services Holding
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 265) and an independent non-executive
director of Bright Future Technology Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1351).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Tak Wai (R & & 5 %), aged 41, join the Group
in July 2021 as senior vice president of business development.
Mr. Leung is primarily responsible for business strategies and
overseeing sales and marketing activities of the Group.

Mr. Leung worked for Watsons’ Wine as Trading (Buying)
Manager from March 2010 to June 2021. He was primarily
responsible for sourcing and promoting the premium fine wine
through retail shops and wholesale to hotels, restaurants,
e-commerce platforms, etc. Before joining Watsons’ Wine,
Mr. Leung had worked in Citysuper, Hong Kong as wine
merchandiser from May 2009 to March 2010.

Mr. Leung obtained a diploma in Business Studies and
Information Technology and completed the first year of
a B.A. Degree Business Management in Dublin Business
School in Ireland. He obtained an International Commerce
Management — Assistant Export Certificate from Institute
Formation Commerciale in Paris in 2006. Mr. Leung obtained
a postgraduate diploma in fashion and luxury brand
management from HKU Space in 2015 and a MSc in Marketing
in 2017 from HKU Space - Edinburgh Napier University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREERREE

Ms. Pin Lam (T~ # %z 1), aged 42, joined the Group in January
2008 as accounting officer and is now the executive assistant
to Chief executive officer of the Group. Ms. Pin is primarily
responsible for assisting the Chief executive officer in overall
management, strategic development and major business
decision-making of the Group.

Ms. Pin obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accounting
from the Edinburgh Napier University in January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company's corporate governance code is based on the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard interest of shareholders
and ensure a quality board and transparency and accountability
to shareholders.

The Company complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code during the Year.

OUR VISION

e We will continue to expand a sustainable global trade
of wine and spirits distribution with representatives who
understand the needs of the wine market and share their
passion for wine.

e  We will enhance our partnership and chemistry with
other industry partners, leading to opportunities for
collaboration.

e Our network of distribution aims to plant the circle
relationship in The Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area in next few years.

e Our distribution activities commit to operate under low
carbon footprint standard, moving to automatisation.

o Our group envisions to diversify and expand our business
in the next decade.
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ERELIRS

THE BOARD

The Board has reserved for its decision and consideration
issues in relation to (i) formulating the strategic objectives of
the Group; (i) considering and deciding the Group's significant
operational and financial matters, including but not limited
to substantial mergers and acquisitions and disposals; (iii)
overseeing the Group's corporate governance practices; (iv)
ensuring a risk management control system in place; (v)
directing and monitoring senior management in pursuit of
the Group's strategic objectives; and (vi) determining the
remuneration packages of all Directors and the Group’s senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments for loss or termination of their office
or appointment. Implementation and execution of Board
policies and strategies and the daily administrative matters
are delegated to the respective Board committees and the
management team of the Company.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year and additional meetings will be held or resolutions in
writing signed by all Directors in lieu of a meeting will be
arranged as and when required. If a substantial shareholder
of the Company or a Director has a conflict of interest in
a transaction which the Board determines to be material,
it will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. Comprehensive information on
matters to be discussed at the Board meeting will be supplied
to the Directors in a timely manner to facilitate discussion and
decision-making.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

At the date of this report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors, the name and office of each of the
members of the Board and the Board committees of the
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Company are as follows:

Board members

EEEmE

ZHBRBEHIOT

Office
BE

Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley
TR L

Mr. Chan Sze Tung
PR &5 1A 9% 4=

Ms. Yeung Chi Hung $.8.5, B.8.S., J.P
BEA LT S5BS,8BS, IR

Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie M.H., J.p
PREWE T MH, 1P

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon
PR S S

Mr. Liu Kin Wai
2R L E

Audit Committee members

Mr. Liu Kin Wai (chairman)

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon

Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie M.H., J.p.

Remuneration Committee members

Mr. Liu Kin Wai (chairman)
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie M.H., J.P
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung $.8.5, B.8.S., J.P

Nomination Committee members
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung S.8.5, B.8.S,, J.p (chairman)

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon
Mr. Liu Kin Wai

Investment Management Committee members
Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon (chairman)

Mr. Chan Sze Tung
Mr. Liu Kin Wai

Y 75 SR A R T

Executive Director and chief executive officer

HITES MITHAER

Executive Director and chief operating officer

HITESLAEREER

Chairman and non-executive Director

TREIEMITES

Independent non-executive Director

BUFRITES

Independent non-executive Director

B IEITES

Independent non-executive Director

BYIFRTESF
EREBEHE
B (FE)
BRAE SE 4
PREHELZ T MH, IP
FMZEESENE
B (FE)

REHLZEMH, JP

BEAI Lt 585 8BS, )P
REZEEGHE

BRIt s8s 885, 1P (E/E)
PRIE S

2Rk E
REEBEZEERE
BRE e (F/5)

PR AR S A

DRk E

—E-=5EH

27



28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years,
commencing from the Listing Date (subject to termination
in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contract) and all executive Directors (i.e Ms. Wong Chi
Lou Shirley and Mr. Chan Sze Tung) have renewed their
service contracts with the Company for further three years
commencing from 12 January 2021.

The non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years,
commencing from the Listing Date (subject to termination in
certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letter of
appointment). The service contract with Ms. Yeung Chi Hung
has been renewed for further three years commencing from 12
January 2021.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company. Ms. Chan Man Ki
Maggie has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 13 June 2019 to 12 June
2022 and the letter of appointment has been renewed with
no specific term commencing from 13 June 2022. Mr. Chan
Cham Man Simon has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 1 December 2021
to 30 November 2024. Mr. Liu Kin Wai has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
1 March 2023 to 28 February 2026.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Board composition is regularly reviewed to ensure that
it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirement of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors is maintained
to ensure independence and effective management. The
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company has satisfied the relevant provision of the GEM
Listing Rules in having at least one of the independent
non-executive Directors with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Save as disclosed under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”,
there is no relationship among the members of the Board.

The appointment of Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and
approved by the Board based on a formal written procedure
and policy for the appointment of new Directors. When
selecting potential candidates for the Directors, their skills,
experience, expertise, devotion of time and non-conflicts of
interests are the key factors.

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company.

The daily operation and management of the business of the
Group, including, among other matters, the implementation of
strategies, are delegated to the executive Directors and senior
management. They report periodically to the Board on their
work and business decisions.

All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda for regular meetings.
The chairman of the Board has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the chairman of
the Board seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meetings and have received
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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Notices of at least 14 days are given to the Directors for
regular meetings, while the Board papers are sent to the
Directors not less than three days before the intended date
of a Board or Board committee meeting. With respect to
other meetings, the Directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors
can attend meetings in person or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the Articles.
The Company Secretary ensures that the procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. Minutes of
the Board meetings and meetings of the Board committees are
kept by the Company Secretary and are available for inspection
at any time on reasonable notice by any Director.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
they deem necessary. The Directors will be updated with
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties from time to time. The
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties.

Minutes of Board meetings and of Board committee meetings
should record in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views expressed. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors or members of the relevant Board
committees for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting.

Any material transaction, which involves a conflict of interests
between a substantial shareholder or a Director and the
Company, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting with the presence of the
independent non-executive Directors. Directors are abstained
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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Responsibilities

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors
act in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. Their
responsibilities include (i) regular board meetings focusing on
business strategy, operational issues and financial performance;
(ii) monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability
of internal and external reporting; (iii) monitoring and
managing potential conflicts of interest of management, board
members and shareholders, including misuse of corporate
assets and abuse in connected transaction; and (iv) ensuing
processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity of the
Company, including financial statements, relationships with
suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.

Director’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have, among other things:

selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

o approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity with the International
Financial Reporting Standards;

e the disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

o made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. Ms. Yeung
Chi Hung is the chairman of the Board and Ms. Wong Chi
Lou Shirley is the Chief Executive Officer. The Board chairman
provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating
policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in
code provision C.2 of the CG Code.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets
out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and also to enhance the quality
of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors. Three of the Directors are independent non-
executive Directors and independent of management, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management
process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional background and
skills.
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The Board currently has three female Directors, which
representing half of the Board members, and as such has
achieved the gender diversity in respect of the Board.

As at 31 March 2023, the gender ratio in the workforce
(including senior management) of the Company of female and
male are 43.33% and 56.67%, which the Board considers to
reflect that a gender equality principle has been adhered to
by the Group. The Board has not identified any challenges for
maintaining gender diversity in the workforce so far.

The Group is determined to and will continue to maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the Board and the
general workforce.
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Board Meetings and General Meetings EESERRREKRE
During the Year, five Board meetings and one general meeting FR - BT TARXRESFSEERZ L —ARRE
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance records are set A& o EE L Fd=FIB5E#ZI0T
out as follows:
No. of No. of
eligible Board general
Meetings meeting
Name of Directors Attended/held attended/held
HES HES
BITEER BITRE
EEsA EEegE2HE REz¥A
Executive Directors 7"5}7 fTEiff%
Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley Wt 5/5 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Tung W?’rﬁf‘ﬁi 5/5 1/1
Non-Executive Directors FHHITE 575
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung HBEARL 2/5 11
Ms. Ho Tsz Wan H%Eﬁi 0/0 11
(resigned on 31/5/2022) (R-F=-—4F 7 H=+—HEFHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BV I 7TEE
Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon BRAEX e 4 5/5 171
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie PREJHEZ L 4/5 1/1
Mr. Liu Kin Wai 22k E 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (RZFE_=ZF=H—HEZF)
Mr. Wong Hin Wing Eﬂﬁﬁéf‘ﬁi 5/5 1/1

(resigned on 1/3/2023)

The Board also held a Board meeting on 20 June 2023 to
approve the annual results of the Company and to review
and consider, inter alias, the audited financial statements of
the Group for the Year, internal control and risk management
system and review certain corporate governance matters for
the Year in accordance with code provision D.3 of the CG
Code.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established four committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Investment Management Committee.
Specific responsibilities of each committee are described
below. All committees have defined terms of reference which
are no less exacting than those set out in the CG Code.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 December 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of the
CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Liu Kin Wai, Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon and Ms.
Chan Man Ki Maggie. The chairman of the Audit Committee
is Mr. Liu Kin Wai, who holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and removal of the external
auditor; (ii) reviewing the financial statements of the Group
and monitoring the integrity of such financial statements; and
(iii) overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures.

During the Year, four Audit Committee meetings were held
to review the quarterly, interim and annual results of the
Group, the financial reporting, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to consider
the change of auditors and re-election of auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee also held a meeting on 20
June 2023 to review and consider, inter alias, the audited
financial statements of the Group for the Year, the internal
control and risk management system of the Group and the re-
appointment of independent auditor of the Group. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditor.

Attendance records of each Audit Committee member are set
out below:

Name of Audit Committee member

EREIRS

EREEY
BEZEZBEEER_E—tF+=-A+N\H
AR /\EEH‘&%@.ELTGEMLW%Q
BIEE 5298 R E)AFRI 2 SFRMESE
D3 - BZZESH-RBKEMHEK - BFE
RIRE LA BRAESEERREE L -
BERZEgEIRABRRBLE  BHEA
GEM i #R B8 5.052) X 5.28 (&8 T Aff
HELABEEEERK -

ERZEGZFEREBRRBETRNUT
FE: (\VINEREM s ZEREBRAE
$ REEE (u)%ﬁﬁﬁglzﬁﬁ&ﬁ%
W ESIEZ E IS WmR 2 T BN K (i) B
ﬁﬁﬁ&#ﬁ/‘t%ub - RBRE IR & R %Wiﬁ

FA BITHREZZESEH - U
AEENFE - PHEEFRE MR
& EREENRARREE RGN A WL
I%J‘EEW’V%(EW&ELLN Az 2RE o
ERZEENMN T _=FXA_+B#H
1723?«% LA%FEJ&%FE BREERNRR -
ﬁ’él)ﬁ’\$$ﬁ2€%’fﬂﬁx$&i‘%~$%
EASBES RRARERERS - MAEEE
URBMENEE EFQHEERESR
S ZEMERRRTINEZBEIL E DL -

BEVERBENBZHFELEHIIMT

No. of eligible meetings
attended/held

EVEZEENENRE HEBITEEREREZHE

Mr. Liu Kin Wai el g e 0/0
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (R-ZF-—=ZF=H—HAEZT)

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon PR S A 4/4

Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie PREE L 3/4

Mr. Wong Hin Wing VLS ?EE 4/4
(resigned on 1/3/2023) (R=ZF=Z=F=H—HFF)

Y | G ERERERARAT —B-SFER
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The Company’s financial statements for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
considered that the relevant financial statements have been
prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
principles and requirements of the Stock Exchange and
disclosures have been fully made.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1
of the CG Code on 18 December 2017. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Liu Kin
Wai, Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie and Mr. Yeung Chi Hung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Liu Kin Wai.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
but are not limited to, the following: (i) evaluating the
performance of all Directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management; (ii) making recommendations to the Board on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (iii) determining the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; (iv)
reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
from time to time; and (v) reviewing and approving matters
relating to Share Option Scheme.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the
Year to review and approve the remuneration of executive
Directors and remuneration of the new Director. At the
Remuneration Committee meeting held on 20 June 2023, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management.

Attendance records of each Remuneration Committee member
are set out below:

Name of Remuneration Committee

ARBNANFREZUBHRRCABZZE
BN EZZEERARBRMBERR
BEETHIMEASTRAGHNIE TE
TR -

FMEES

FMEEeER _T—+tF+_-A+N\H
R HRESGECETAEERATAZ
TRAHEXSEBENK - HFHNEBEH =K E
MK BIEBIRRELEE  REEZEIREG
TUZE - FNEESEEARERIE -

FHZESXTERABBEINRRATS
B ()HEeREEASREEEZRA
AR EBEZNSREREHFMBE R
REAESSFEHES  (DRZERR
FRARFUNERFMBRRAESSFELE
& (INEEERMTEERSREREZ
FHMASARBIERTESTFHANESS
tEHEE  (V2REXEBRREHN  EH
EMRAEERENTFMER S RV)EH
KAt/ER B R 8l 2 FIA -

FA- BT -RFMEZEeeH UEHR
WITEF2HFHERHEEZ2HM R =-F
“T=FRNA-tTHZzFHEEeEH L
FNZEERHESTNRNEERE ZHM -

ExMEZEeRB 2 hFmEEREIINT

No. of eligible meeting

member attended/held
FHMESEREHE HE BT EERERZHE
Mr. Liu Kin Wai el e 0/0
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (R=ZF-—ZF=F—HEZFE)
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie PREHEL L 1/1
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung BEL LT 11
Mr. Wong Hin Wing mRREE 11

(resigned on 1/3/2023)
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five highest paid
individuals for the Year as regarded to be disclosed pursuant
to the CG Code are provided in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EREIRS

AFEEEEFHROLESHFALZFHE
EREBEFEATARE  #HIREAH
BaRHIFES ©

During the Year, the remuneration of the senior management ~ RAFE - SR ERE 2 HEIEZE R
is listed below by band: U
Number of
individuals
AT ZHE
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 7T 2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with code provision B.3 of the CG
Code on 18 December 2017. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Ms. Yeung Chi Hung, Mr.
Liu Kin Wai and Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Ms. Yeung Chi Hung.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
(iii) making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
policy on the Board diversity and the measurable objectives for
implementing such policy from time to time adopted by the
Board annually.

The Company has adopted a board independence policy to
ensure independent views are available to the Board. Under
the policy, the Nomination Committee shall put emphasis
on whether the composition of executive and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is
balanced and shall ensure that there is a strong independent
element on the Board. All Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are given opportunities to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. Upon a
reasonable request of any Director, the Board shall resolve
to provide separate independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expenses.
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One Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Year
to (i) review and consider that the structure, size, diversity
and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iii) recommend the
re-appointments of Directors. The Nomination Committee also
reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness
and considered that the Group has achieved the objectives of
the board diversity during the Year.

Attendance records of each Nomination Committee member
are set out below:

Name of Nomination Committee member

AERBIT-RRBZEEEH - AR
AREREFTENRE - REREK (i)
AHAEBVIFMITTES 2B ¢ K (i) &
ENMZIES - REZBEENCRIES
L TUEBRABBREERIE - XRAR
SERAFECEREESZLIENAR -

ERAHLZEBERBZHFRREHIIMT

No. of eligible meeting
attended/held

REZEEHERR HE " BITEEKEZEZHE

Ms. Yeung Chi Hung BREAL L 1/1

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon PRIE S S 1/1

Mr. Liu Kin Wai gl g e 0/0
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (R-FE-—=F=F—HEZF)

Mr. Wong Hin Wing mHEREE 11

(resigned on 1/3/2023)

The Nomination Committee will review the Board composition
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity, including
but not limited to those described under the heading of “Board
Diversity Policy” in this annual report. The Board Diversity
Policy and the Board Independence Policy shall be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee annually, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee shall consider factors below when

it makes recommendation for appointment and reappointment,

inter alia:

a) mix of Board members that promotes diversity of
background and experience on the Board;

b) competency;

)  age of potential/existing Director;
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d) independence of potential/existing Board member;

e) business, technical, or specialised skills and experience of
member/potential member;

f)  ability, time, commitment and willingness of a new
member to serve and an existing member to continue
service;

g) specific value a member/potential member can add to the
Board; and

h)  number of listed company directorships (applicable to
candidates of independent non-executive Directors).

Investment Management Committee

The Investment Management Committee was established with
written terms of reference in compliance on 18 December
2017. The Investment Management Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon, Mr. Liu Kin Wai
Wing and Mr. Chan Sze Tung. The chairman of the Investment
Management Committee is Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon.

The primary functions of the Investment Management
Committee include, but are not limited to, the following: (i)
to oversee the Group’s investment activities; (ii) to conduct
periodical review of the Group’'s investments and report
to the Board; (iii) to set out the long-term and short-term
investment goals and (iv) to review and update the investment
management policy.

One Investment Management Committee meeting was held
during the Year to review the long-term and short-term investment
goals and the related foreign exchange policies and risks.
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Attendance records of each Investment Management
Committee member are set out below:

Name of Investment Management
Committee member

FREEEZBENEB 2 FEs

No. of eligible meeting
attended/held

REEHEZESREHSR HiE BITEEREEZHA

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon FRIE S oA 11

Mr. Chan Sze Tung PR &R S A 1/1

Mr. Liu Kin Wai 2R E S E 0/0
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (RZBZ=F=F—HEZT)

Mr. Wong Hin Wing mREREE 1/1
(resigned on 1/3/2023) (R-FE-—=F=H—HEFT)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EERINGE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code. As mentioned under the paragraph headed “Board
Meetings and General Meetings” above, the Board has (i)
reviewed the Company’s practices on corporate governance
for the Year; (ii) reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management for the Year; (iii) reviewed and monitored
the Company’s practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements for the Year; (iv) reviewed and
monitored the code of conduct applicable to Directors for the
Year; and (v) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “required standard of
dealings”). In response to the specific enquiry made by the
Company of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they had compiled with the required standard of dealings
throughout the Year.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

AEBAEFRTEEE AT Z T AIE
NEA2VEIANEEERET - W&
FegRkRAg Bl EFE
BRI ARBAFENEEERTR
(VB AEREARFEEENSNEEREN
FRl RFFEERER (iR LEEAR
AN AFEETERLROIIZRER  (iv)
RV EEAFEERBEANTRTA
K () B AR RE TR EE AR TR R AF
WILEIFI

ARFIEMESETESFRIMEMN—E
TMERGEM E R BIZ85.48 £ 5.67 1§ A
RENRZPHETEE ([ RHGRTERE]) 1
BEITATA - REERRAFESHMIED
HEEH 2RESBRLAFEDETR
GIRTERLE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
The Directors are continually updated with business and
market changes, and legal and regulatory developments to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities through various
Board meetings, resolutions, memoranda, Board papers, and
updates on corporate governance practices and director’s
responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules, applicable laws
and other relevant statutory requirements.

Up to date of this annual report, the current Board members
participated in the following training programs:

EREQWE

ESHEERRE

EFHBYIBEREZEBET - BBF
BEELEH #5 B EFEEX
HRNEERTHE - GEM TR B EER
B -EREARHEMEBEEEER  EF
SETHEERTSEE AR ER
BR - URITRS 2B o

BEAFHMNAN HERNEFEKER
B LAUMEIRRAR

Types of training

EIEE
Reading
materials
updating on
Attending new rules and
Name of Directors training regulations
AR EH
HBER
EEpnE 2 miE3 BB B E AR
Executive Directors HITEF
Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley FTERLT v/ v
Mr. Chan Sze Tung BREFHA 4 v v
Non-Executive Director HHTEF
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung Ct AR e v/ v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUINTEE
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie REHELL v v
Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon BRI S A v v
Mr. Liu Kin Wai et s v v
(appointed on 1/3/2023) (R-FE-=Z#=H—HEZT)
Mr. Wong Hin Wing e v v
(resigned on 1/3/2023) (R-ZF-=F=H—HFIT)

Ny BEBRERERARAE —R-SFER
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors and officers
of the Company are indemnified by the Company against any
liability incurred by them in discharge of their duties while
holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company.
The Directors and officers of the Company shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach
of trust proven against them. The Company had arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance as
required under the CG Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Oi Yin was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company from an external service provider on 29 July
2022. She is responsible for, among others, ensuring a good
information flow within the Board and between the Board and
senior management of the Company, providing advice to the
Board in relation to the Directors’ obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations and assisting
the Board in implementing the corporate governance practices.
Ms. Tsang has attended not less than 15 hours of training as
required under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules during the
Year. Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chan
Sze Tung, the executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. There is currently no internal
audit department within the Group. The day-to-day operations
are entrusted to personnel of the Group who is accountable
for conduct and performance of the Group and is required to
ensure the business operation of the each department to be in
line with the scope of the delegated authority and to ensure
each department to implement and strictly adhere to the
strategies and policies set by the Company from time to time.
The Board will be kept informed of material developments of
business and implementation of the policies and strategies
set by the Board on a regular basis. The Chief Operating
Officer is responsible for the overall internal audit function
and an external consultant is engaged to review the internal
control systems of the Group and present its findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Board.
Accordingly, the Board considered that the Company’s internal
control system is adequate and effective and no internal audit
department is considered necessary in consideration of the
Group’s current operation size and organisation structure.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, will conduct an
annual review of both design and implementation effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, which covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. Such annual
review will be done with a view to ensuring that resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee will communicate any material issues to the Board.
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The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures to enhance the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations, as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems are effective and adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

We established appropriate level of information technology
assess rights, avoiding leakage of price sensitive information.
We also establish inside information disclosure procedures,
including reporting channels and responsible person of
disclosure, unified response to external enquiries and obtain
advice from professional financial advisors or the Stock
Exchange, if necessary, in order to ensure compliance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules regarding handling and
dissemination of inside information.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

For the Year, the fees paid/payable to the Group’s external
auditors in respect of the audit services and non-audit services
were approximately HK$0.7 million and approximately
HK$0.1 million, respectively. The reporting responsibilities of
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Reports on pages 113 to 117 of this annual report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The disclosure of the Group's information in a reasonable
and timely manner by the Board is essential for providing
shareholders as well as the investors a better understanding
of the business performance, operations and strategies of the
Group. The Company’s website at www.wines-link.com allows
the potential and existing investors as well as the public to gain
access to and acquire the Company’s up-to-date corporate and
financial information.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company. They can also
send their enquiries to the Board through these means. The
contact details of the Company are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report and the Company’s
website.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that
they may have with the Board or the management directly.
Board members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are
available at the meetings to answer any questions raised by
shareholders.

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy and its effectiveness for the Year. Taking into account the
various existing channels for communication and participation,
the Company is of the view that the existing Shareholders’
Communication Policy is appropriate to the Company and has
been duly and effectively implemented.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant
to article 12.3 of the Articles, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene a general meeting, and general meetings
shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed to duly
convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them may convene a general meeting in the
same manner as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Directors.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
or put forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The
contact details are as follows:

Board of Directors

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited

Address 26th Floor, AIA Financial Centre,
712 Prince Edward Road East,

San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
2317 1100

2317 1032
general@wines-link.com

Telephone no.
Fax no.
Email address

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or a
general meeting, the shareholders shall submit a written notice
of those proposals with detailed contact information to the
Board/Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the proposed resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BREREBMARRERRENERF

RRERROMNZEREN  SHREREKR
EEROBYRESR BRENESR
F o ABEREEBRRE < FRILAIN - 1R
BAIRIE 12316 EFARRER/ER
AR AE MR KNG IR ER A
FAEBRNEEELMERH - BEEX
BREARTNEBNTIENER - HE
EEAREN BRI EBHEE 21 RAER
BRAE  AIZREARGHEFRENF
FIEAEAREEBFEZERNAL A
BOFEEARAGZHERTAARKR
RE o

BERAMARFRLIENEAXRAEETS
ROEMNEHIERE - BRERDT

EES

B 15 0 B R IR B IR A ]

ik O BBNEFER
RFBERT7125%
RBNEERRP L2612

BEIRTS 2317 1100

BEREHE 2317 1032

BE U general@wines-link.com

ERRAFAEGXBRAE LREHESE
Al BRREEARREE L EEXMER
BERe NAWERRZEEZEENER
AN AR AR B Y

FR—-BRARAEERABSEREHE
B WERRRARBRERAR - D
AREREFEFRRRREREEAA
B A B IR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Moreover, the notice period concerning the notice to be given
to all the shareholders for consideration of the proposals
submitted by the shareholders concerned varies as follows
pursuant to article 12.4 of the Articles:

(@) for an annual general meeting, it shall be called by notice
in writing of at least twenty-one days; and

(b) for a general meeting other than an annual general
meeting, it shall be called by notice in writing of at least
fourteen days,

shall be given in the manner mentioned in the articles of
association to all members, to the Directors and to the
auditors.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong and provide their
full names, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed to adopt the amended
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12
August 2022 (i) allowing general meetings to be held as an
electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general meeting)
or a hybrid meeting; and (ii) to bring the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company in line with the recent
amendments to the GEM Listing Rules.
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INTRODUCTION

Wine's Link International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is primarily
involved in the wholesale and retail businesses of a wide
spectrum of wine products and other alcoholic beverages in
Hong Kong with a focus on premium collectible red wine.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
("ESG") initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

BOARD STATEMENT

The board of directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present
the ESG Report of the Group, which reviewed the Group's
ESG initiative, plans, performance, as well as its sustainable
development in respect of environmental protection, labour
practices, business operations, supply chain management,
and other issues. As a responsible corporation, the Group
views ESG commitments as part of its responsibilities and
is committed to incorporating ESG considerations into its
decision-making process.

Meanwhile, the Group actively responds to environmental
policies such as carbon neutrality, energy conservation and
waste reduction, and promotes sustainable development
of enterprises. The Group believes that setting ESG-related
targets can enhance the Group’s commitment to corporate
social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to
better understand the Group’s ESG performance. Accordingly,
the Group has set targets for issues that are material to the
Group, including greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, waste
management, energy consumption and water consumption.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed a comprehensive governance
framework to ensure the alignment of ESG governance with
its strategic growth, while advocating ESG integration into its
business operations.
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The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group's ESG
strategies, management approach and reporting. To better
manage the Group's ESG-related issues, the Board examines
and approves the ESG-related goals and targets, priorities,
policies and frameworks, as well as reviews the progress
towards their implementation and achievement with the
assistance of the ESG task force (“ESG Task Force”). Besides,
the Board is also accountable for ensuring the effectiveness of
ESG risk management and internal control mechanism through
annual assessments against ESG-related issues.

The Group has established the ESG Task Force, chaired by the
Chief Executive Officer to facilitate the Board's oversight of
ESG issues. The ESG Task Force is responsible for collecting
and analysing the relevant ESG information, identifying and
assessing the Group’'s ESG risks, as well as planning and
implementing ESG-related policies, guidelines and measures.
The ESG Task Force also identifies, evaluates and prioritises
material ESG issues through materiality assessment, which
are further reviewed and endorsed by the Board for report
disclosure. In addition, the ESG Task Force periodically reports
the ESG related matters to the Board for the evaluation
and subsequent implementation or revision of the Group’s
ESG strategies and management approach, and to ensure
appropriate risk management on ESG.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The management of the Group identifies the reporting scope
based on the materiality principle and considers the core
business and main revenue source. Considering that the
Group's operations are solely derived from sale and distribution
of wine products, other alcoholic beverages and wine
accessory products in Hong Kong, the ESG Report covers the
Group’s business activities in Hong Kong. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) data were gathered and analysed from
companies and subsidiaries that are under the Group’s direct
operational control.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the financial year ended
31 March 2023 (the “Year").
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
practices can be found in the Corporate Governance Report of
this annual report.

The Group attaches great importance to materiality,
guantitative, and consistency during the preparation for the
ESG Report. The Group has applied these reporting principles
in the ESG Reporting Guide as the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to diagnose
material ESG issues during the Year, thereby adopting the
confirmed material issues as the focus of the ESG Report.
The materiality of ESG issues was reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and the senior management. Please refer to the
sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” for further details.

Quantitative: This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with
the ESG Reporting Guide and discloses KPIs in a quantitative
manner. Information regarding the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation references and sources of key
conversion factors used for KPIs is stated wherever appropriate.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to the ESG
Report were substantially consistent with the previous year
for meaningful comparison. If there are any changes that may
affect comparison with previous reports, the Group will make
explanatory notes to the corresponding section hereof.

The Group has established internal controls and a formal
review process to ensure that any information presented in
this ESG Report is as accurate and reliable as possible. This
ESG report has been approved by the ESG Task Force and the
Board.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To further the Group’s sustainable development efforts, the
Group engages its key stakeholders to identify sustainability
topics and potential risks by way of engagement sessions
including routine meetings and annual general meeting. Key
stakeholders include but are not limited to, shareholders and
investors, senior management and employees, customers,
suppliers, media and the public and government and other
regulatory authorities.

Stakeholders’ expectations have been taken into consideration
by utilising diversified engagement methods as shown below:

Stakeholders Engagement Methods
0 285K
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Sustainable profitability
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Senior management and
employees
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R HERELSWRE

Stakeholders

Engagement Methods

Expectations

& 285K HE
Customers o Visits to retail shops o Knowledgeable wine
o Customer service hotline and suggestions from sommelier
email o Customer satisfaction
o High-quality services
(NS s Z2HTEE o  [FEMREHENBEIHEEZE
e ERRENER EE
e EFWEE
e BER®
Suppliers o Site visits o Fair and open procurement
o Business meetings and o On-time payment
discussion e  Sustainable relationship
HrEn e EiZ2E e RARAFIREE

Media and the public

Government and other regulatory
authorities
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° ESG reports
o Company website
o Reports and announcements

e RE HEMERAWMSE
o AL
s WERRE

e Written or electronic
correspondences

e Visits and inspections

e ZEMRXETFBEE

s ZERBE
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The Group endeavours to actively listen to and collaborate with
its stakeholders to ensure that their opinions can be voiced out
through an effective communication channel. In the long run,
the stakeholders’ contribution will aid the Group in identifying
and improving potentially overlooked ESG performances
and maintaining the success of the Group’s business in the
challenging market.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Board and the ESG Task Force have participated in the
preparation of the ESG Report. They have assisted the Group
in reviewing its operations, identified key ESG issues and
assessed its importance to its businesses and stakeholders. In
alignment with the Group’s vision on sustainability, business
will continue to be operated with high ethical standards and
provide sustainable returns to stakeholders.

With the assistance of the designated personnel from various
functional departments, the Group identified the list of
material ESG issues for the Group, based on its business, the
ESG Reporting Guide, and industry standard. To prioritise
the identified material ESG issues, the Group conducted a
material assessment survey during the Year. Management and
employees of different business units and departments were
invited to evaluate the significance of the identified ESG issues
to the stakeholders and the Group’s business. The results of
the materiality assessment were reviewed and approved by the
Board.
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The Group's materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year:
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4. Waste management 12.  Training and development 20.  Customer privacy
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5. Use of packaging materials 13.  Salaries and employee benefits ~ 21. Feedback and complaint handling
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6.  Impact on the environment 14. Diversity and equal opportunity ~ 22.  Product safety and quality
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7. Climate change 15. Talent attraction and retention ~ 23. Intellectual property protection
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8. Community contribution 16.  Anti-corruption
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During the Year, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the
disclosed contents were in compliance with the requirements
of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions. Stakeholders can provide valuable advice
in respect of the ESG Report or the Group's performances in
sustainable development by emailing to: general@wines-link.com.

THE GROUP’'S COMMITMENT ON ESG ISSUES

The Group places great emphasis on incorporating sustainable
business practices into its daily operations. In achieving a
sustainable long-term growth, the Group recognises the
importance of taking into account stakeholders’ opinions as
they are an integral part of the Group. Moreover, they aid
the Group in identifying overlooked ESG issues from different
perspectives.

In order to identify and assess the material concerns of the
stakeholders, the Group has conducted materiality assessment
surveys through stakeholder engagement. The assessment
helped the Group determine the factors that have material
impacts on its sustainable growth and incorporated them in
the development of its ESG strategies and targets. The Group's
focus on ESG includes climate action and energy saving, along
with managing its resources and waste effectively. Recognising
the urgent need for decisive action to mitigate climate change,
the Group has set targets to reduce GHG emissions, electricity
usage, water consumption and waste disposed to landfills.
The environmental targets were approved by the Board and
the progress will be reviewed by the ESG Task Force annually.
The Group believes setting ESG-related targets can enhance
the Group’s commitment to corporate social responsibility and
allow the Group’s stakeholders to have a clearer understand
on the ESG performance of the Group.

The Group upholds the people-oriented principle. It
appreciates and recognises the contribution of its employees.
In return, the Group protects its employees by being adamant
about providing a non-discriminatory workplace culture and
competitive remuneration packages. The Group organises
regular wine tasting workshops and gathering events to its
employees and their family members.
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The Group also aims to contribute to harmonious society and
works hand in hand with employees and non-governmental
organisations to participate in various community services
and donation. With these contributions, the Group was
again awarded the Caring Company Logo under the Caring
Company Award for the seventh consecutive time during the
Year.

As one of the largest wine companies in Hong Kong, the
Group's leadership position obliges it to shoulder great
responsibility to assist in constructing a more sustainable future
for its stakeholders and society. The Group pledges to make
consistent effort in strengthening its ESG missions in order to
create an everlasting value to the environment and society.

EMISSIONS

Environmental protection and sustainable development rely
on concerted and continuous efforts from all industries and
society. The Group is conscious of the environmental impact
associated with its operations, therefore, it has formulated the
Environmental Policy to manage its environmental footprint
across the Group's network of operating markets. In addition,
the Group is committed to minimising adverse environmental
impacts by improving existing policies and incorporating green
practices in its daily operations. During the Year, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to, the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste
Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Air Emissions

The Group's air emissions were mostly generated by the use of
company vehicles. In response to the above sources, the Group
has actively taken measures to manage the air emissions
during its operation. Measures on controlling air emissions will
be provided in the following section headed “GHG Emissions”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

R

itEREREE

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s  AEREBEZHBRRAFEZ EBRIFRIIE

emissions in the Year are shown in the table below: R TR

Environmental indicators Unit 2023 2022
RIBERE By —E=F B
Air emissions (ote )

BE HER i)

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) emissions kg 7.87 6.22
AL (NO) BEIR T

Sulphur oxides (SO,) emissions kg 0.14 0.15
e (SO,) BER T

Particulate matter (PM) emissions kg 0.77 0.57
FER Y (PM) BERR )

Note 1: The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SOx and BT -

PM are sourced from: (i) the Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Department’s (“EPD”) EMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation model;, and (ii) the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software — MOBILE6.1. The assumption of 80%
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius, an
average speed of 30 kmh, and include running exhaust
emissions only.

R G ENOx ~ SOx ] PM 9 B B
BFRIFER DEEREREE
([ FRIRE]) #IEMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation ;5 2 #F 1k 37
ERA Ri)EEIREREER
Vehicle Emission Modeling Software
JTEBFE B F — MOBILE6. 1 °

BRI R ZE80% B EHEE25
JE ~ FHEE 30 2N B R A2 A
BT ERIERHLE -

To better manage the Group's material topics and its AFZEREEAEBEEREBEMNE NS
performance on environmental aspect, the Group decides  FENMERIE  KREBRERIE/LEE
to set quantifiable targets to gradually reduce air emissions WREHE-_Z-_+F=-_A=+—HIFE

intensity by the year ending 31 March 2027. BEROBERYETE -

Reduction target of air emissions BERHFEBZREEEE

Air emissions intensity Reduction target Baseline Year Status

BERBEHRERE WEEE R HEF R R

NO, emissions intensity Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
31 March 2027 31 March 2022

NO, Br & & BHEZT-+F=A=+—H #HET-__F=1 HEI7
LIEFER L 3% =+—HILFE

SO, emissions intensity Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
31 March 2027 31 March 2022

SO, HE & E-TLF=A=+t—H BEZET-__F=/ #EI%
IEFER L 3% =+—HILFE

PM emissions intensity Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
31 March 2027 31 March 2022

PM BERLE & HE_ZT-_+F=A=+—0 BE_T__F=4 EI¥
LIEFERL 3% =+—BIFE

Sy A TRERERARAR —R-SFER
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GHG Emissions

The principal GHG emissions of the Group were generated
from petrol and diesel consumed by company vehicles
(Scope 1), purchased electricity (Scope 2) and electricity
used for processing fresh water and sewage by government
departments, paper waste disposal at landfills and business
air travel (Scope 3). To reduce the Group’s GHG emissions,
the Group has set a target to gradually reduce GHG emissions
intensity (tCO,e/HK$ million revenue) by the year ending 31
March 2027, using the year ended 31 March 2022 as the
baseline year. To achieve this target, the Group has adopted
the following measures:

Scope 1 - Direct GHG Emissions

The Group has adopted the following measures to mitigate
direct GHG emissions from petrol and diesel consumed by
vehicles in its operations:

- Plan routes ahead of time to avoid route repetition and
optimise fuel consumption;

—  Regularly service vehicles to ensure optimal engine
performance and fuel use;

- Switch off the vehicle engine when not in use; and

- Utilise public transportation instead of the Group’s
vehicles for business commute.

Scope 2 - Energy Indirect GHG Emissions

Electricity consumption accounted for the largest percentage
of GHG emissions within the Group. The Group has
implemented measures to reduce energy consumption and the
said measures will be mentioned in the section headed “Use of
Resources”.

Scope 3 - Other Indirect GHG Emissions

Electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by
government departments, office paper waste disposal and
business air travel attributed to the category of other indirect
GHG emissions. Noting that air travels generate a large amount
of GHG emissions, the Group only utilises air travels when
deemed necessary. Tele-conferences and web conferences
are the Group’s preferred communication channels. Measures
implemented to reduce paper waste disposal are mentioned in
the section headed “Waste Management”.
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The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s
GHG emissions in the Year are shown in the table below:

R

itEREREE

AEEBEREBHBMNAFEZ EBRR
KRERIIRR TR

Environmental indicators Unit 2023 2022
RGER 81y —B-=F —F==F
GHG emissions
BERBHR
Direct emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 24.95 26.61
BEYW (86 1) Mg — %Mﬁzﬂﬂ.?%
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) tote ) tCO,e 134.25 233.67
IR (gh%2) 0 Mg — ’%Lﬂ: REE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) tCO,e 3.49 3.43
HibREHER (847 3) Mg — ’%MI: EE
Total GHG emissions tCOe 162.69 263.71
BERBEINEE Mg — ’%Mt EE
GHG emissions intensity Mote2) tCO,e (per HK$ 1.10 1.19
million revenue)
RERBHRETE W2 WE— S LIREE
(BE&EkKE (Br))

Note 1:  The emission factor for Hong Kong based operations is i1 EBEEEFHE $@ﬁ§’ﬂﬁf#}fﬁ?ﬁ¥*ﬂ*

set at 0.39kg CO,/kWh, which is sourced from CLP Power 73039 F i Z Gt FLEF -

Hong Kong Limited Sustainability Report 2022. FREFEEHFR A2 = g::

FAJ AR -

Note 2:  For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded — Mfit2: BEZE_—F_=F=H=+—HIF

a revenue of approximately HK$147.7 million. For the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$222.4 million. This data is used for
calculating other intensity data.

B REEGFR N 147755
BrLoflz—F-—F=HJ=+4+—
HiFFE - FEEE W 5 B 222.4
BAEETT o WEE ARG EE M

Y B S RRERERERAE RS
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R HERELSWRE

Reduction target of GHG emissions BERBHERZRBHEEE

GHG emissions intensity  Reduction target Baseline Year Status

BEREBHEREE WEEE & BEXEF kR

GHG emissions intensity Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
31 March 2027 31 March 2022

RERBHNETE BHE-_T_+F=H BE_T-__F=H #I¥
=t+—HIEFERD3% =+—HIEFE

Sewage Discharges into Water and Land Mk &+ T

Due to the Group’s business nature, the discharges into ~ HRAEBEZXBIEE - mLimE580
land were insignificant. Similarly, discharges into water were ~ TNE K E#M - A/KPFFTERIEE
insignificant. Sewage discharge was covered by the water bill K )57k E B2 HE/KERER L HIR
and is considered as its water consumption. The relevant data  AH KRB o HEABIE L E/KERE &
and water-saving measures will be mentioned in the section 7 [KJRBFE] —£f ©

headed “Water Consumption”.

Waste Management BERYER

Hazardous Waste Management EEEREYEE

Due to the Group's business nature, no material hazardous MR ANEBE2BHEE  KEBRAFE
waste was generated by the Group during the Year. WREFXEREEEEYD -

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste disposed of by the Group was mainly
office paper. The Group contracted a licenced recycling
company to recycle non-reusable waste paper and confidential
documents on a regular basis. Commercial wastes from the
office, warehouse and retail shops were mainly collected by
the respective building management, the data of such disposal
was therefore not available. For other unavoidable disposals,
wastes were classified and arrangements were made with
government qualified recyclers for proper disposal. Overall,
the Group did not note a disproportional amount of waste
generated.

The Group places great effort in raising the awareness of its
employees on the importance of reducing waste production. As
part of its efforts to reduce waste, the Group has set a target
to conduct recycling campaigns twice a year from the year
ended 31 March 2023 onward. To better govern the use of
resources, the Group has developed the Policy on Environment
Performance and has included the following environmentally
friendly initiatives to enhance its environmental performance.

Green measures include but are not limited to the following:

- Reduce the use of single-use disposable items;

- Reuse income packaging materials from suppliers;

- Recycle office and electronic equipment after their life
cycle;

- Reuse single-sided waste paper where possible;

- Print electronic correspondences only when necessary;
and

- Procure office paper with Forest Stewardship Council
Recycled Label.

During the Year, the Group increased its design and advertising
activities, which led to an increase in the amount of paper
waste. As a result, the total non-hazardous waste intensity
decreased by approximately 33.33% from approximately 0.003
tonnes/HK$ million revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022
to approximately 0.002 tonnes/HK$ million revenue for the
Year. Office paper disposed of was recycled where practicable.
During the Year, 266.67kg of office paper was recycled. The
Group will continue to monitor its performance, seek to reduce
the amount of waste produced.

ARl sl
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The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s

non-hazardous waste production in the Year are shown in the
table below:

AEBELCBEERYNAFREZEE
BRIRRIBEER TRINR

Waste 2023 2022
BESRY —EC-=F —EC-C-F
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonnes 0.27 0.69
EXCBEERMES 98

Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Tonnes (per HK$ 0.002 0.003

million revenue)

ELZBEBRRMEE

To better manage the Group’s material topics and its
performance on environmental aspect, the Group decides to
set quantifiable targets to gradually reduce GHG emissions
intensity by the year ending 31 March 2027.

Reduction target of non-hazardous waste produced

W (BE &k OBT))

REBMEBRAEEEREERANEANG
E&Ei‘%fﬁ $'§@J&*“i§1tﬁh
URBE_Z_+F=A=+—HILFE
i%*fﬂ%ﬂ%lﬁ EHREE o

EECEERZMZRHEER

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status

RIEER WEEE R HEF 7R B8

Non-hazardous waste Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
produced intensity 31 March 2027 31 March 2022

EECEBEBREYTE BE_ T +tF=A=t—H BE_T__F

IFEFER D 3% ZA=tT—HIFE #T%
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business
to ensure the compliance with national and local laws and
regulations relating to environmental protection and pollutant
emissions. In the Year, there was no case of material non-
compliance with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water
Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance of
Hong Kong and other relevant laws and regulations relating
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that have
a significant impact on environment. In addition, there was
no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group takes the initiative to introduce green measures
to reduce the environmental impact arising from its business
operations. Measures on reducing general waste and office
paper waste production have been mentioned in the section
headed “Emissions”.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Energy Consumption

The Group realises the scarcity of finite natural resources and
has therefore implemented policies to better govern the use
of resources. Recognising that the majority of the electricity
consumed was due to the 24-hour climate-control showroom
bar and wine storage, the Group places great effort in
procuring energy efficient wine cellars and cabinets, and would
regularly inspect the seal to ensure that it remains airtight to
avoid jeopardising the quality of wine and energy wastage.
Anomaly in electricity consumption will be investigated and
preventive measures will be taken.

In addition, the Group strives to further reduce energy
consumption by setting a target to gradually reduce electricity
consumption intensity (kWh/HK$ million revenue) by the year
ending 31 March 2027, using the year ended 31 March 2022
as the baseline year. To achieve this target, the Group has
adopted the following energy-saving measures:

—  Switch on external lighting of the retail shop only during
operation hours;

- Pre-set air-conditioning temperature at the offices;

- Post eye-catching reminders near light switches and
electrical appliances for employees;

- Switch off all idle electrical appliances and unnecessary
lightings upon leaving the premises; and

- Purchase equipment with higher energy efficiency on the
replacement of old equipment.

In addition, to further enhance energy efficiency of the lighting
system, the Group has set a target to replace its lighting
equipment with LED lighting by the year ending 31 March
2025.

Due to the increase in motor vehicle travels during the
Year. The total energy consumption intensity increased by
approximately 14.32% from approximately 2,591.42 kWh/
HKS$ million revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately 2,962.49 kWh/HK$ million revenue for the Year.

BiE  -ERELWE

BEROH 3%
AEBERINEREAERESZ - HAitE
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The total units of energy and water consumed by the Group

and the amount of total packaging material used for finished
products in the Year are shown in the table below:

AREBERARFEIBFREZ 6

RN KA E DA

RERERMABREMHERER TR

N

Total use of resources Unit 2023 2022

EREARAE B —E=F —ECHF

Purchased electricity consumed kWh 344,227.00 475,158.00

FrBFEEEEE N T R A

Petrol consumed (Mote ) kWh 63,170.94 52,481.32

BB R () T FLF

Diesel consumed (Note 1) kWh 30,161.10 48,692.76

BB FESEL R W) F R

Total energy consumed kWh 437,559.04 576,332.08

KBRERERE T EL B

Energy consumption intensity kWh (per HK$ 2,962.49 2,591.42
million revenue)

BERBERERE TEF (a8 0Br))

Water consumption m3 949.00 230.00

RKERE K

Water consumption intensity m? (per HK$ 6.43 1.03
million revenue)

RKHEFERE K (BEE%E (BT))

Note 1: The conversion factor used to convert data in other units Wit EEHEMENERTRFCE

BEFTREBREERETFI#.2
Energy Statistics Manual °

to kWh is sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual
issued by the International Energy Agency.

KR E

The Group’s water use is mainly domestic water. Recognising ~ AERER/KEEHEERAK - AEERH
the importance of water conservation, the Group has set a  H|Ei/KHMEZEN - WERTEBIFE - REZE
target to gradually reduce water consumption intensity (m¥% ~ —ZT__F= )EJ T-BHBIEFEREE
HK$ million revenue) by the year ending 31 March 2027, using F - REBZE-_Z_t+tHF=A=+—H1t
the year ended 31 March 2022 as the baseline year. To achieve ~ FERMZEFRERKEE (L FK BE
the target and enhance employees’ awareness of water Wz (BJL)) - RENER - EAEESD
conservation, besides posting water conservation reminders  KE & © & T 572 & B 5 P ok B B KR
around the Group’s premises, the Group also regularly inspects /7?9|\ CRNEE T E B A KRR AR L
water taps to prevent leakage and installs dual flush water 2% » ZAR] BEAIEE + KRBT %2 3% & KoK
cistern in toilets and water-saving thimble in sinks where — #8 » WHASEIRIE 2 E EI/KTAET

possible.

Water Consumption

EEE FiEokiER - BENEKE#RE
FTigog - AAREBUBER TIEZHE - AKX
ERHEE T - —_F=-A=+—HItFE
HI%)2303 5 KIEMNAI312.61% EAFE
B #7949 37 J53K o

Attributed to the implementation of the above-mentioned
water saving measures, water conservation awareness among
employees has increased. Total water consumption increased
by approximately 312.61% from approximately 230m? for the
year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately 949m?3 for the
Year due to the cancellation of work-from-home arrangement.

MAAREE 2B MHYE - AEBRERGE
7R A 8 BT RE -

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group did not
encounter any problem in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose.
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BiE  -ERELWE

Reduction target of use of resources BERERAZRHERE
Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
BREER R = EEF R R
Energy consumption Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
intensity 31 March 2027 31 March 2022
BERBREE BHE_T_+F=A=+—H HBET__F
LIEFER L 3% ZA=T—RHIEFE #ETH
Water consumption Reduce 3% by year ending Year ended In progress
intensity 31 March 2027 31 March 2022
RKERERE BE_ZT+F=A=+t—H BE_T__F
IFFER A 3% ZA=1T—HILFE #TH
Use of Packaging Material EREEMR

Due to the Group’s business nature, the use of packaging HRARSRE 2 XBFIEE - A BEME
material was not considered to be a material ESG aspect to the ~ AEEME W ARERIEEZIRE HE R

Group. EYREM o
THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RERXARER
RESOURCES

The Group does not engage in industrial production, therefore ~ AEEW AR ETE4AE - WAEEES
the overall environmental impact from the Group’s business %E%\ﬂ% %%ﬁiﬂ’]%&%ﬁ%%*ﬁ%@d\ ° 9"
operations is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group remains CAEENEBRINERBEREEY
conscious of its existing and potential impacts, therefore lﬁﬁmﬁﬁnﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ_tﬁ’]f&%ﬂ %K
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its business  EXTEP#E il iR & —H‘EF'*E*J/%‘@&/%%E
model, adopts preventive measures and ensures compliance

with relevant laws and regulations.

Indoor Air Quality ERNZEREE

Indoor air quality was regularly monitored and measured. AEEFTHEARAEZAZREE - I
During the Year, the indoor air quality of the Group’s  AFE - $’§liﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]§|ﬁﬁaﬁ,\%§/\
premises was satisfactory. To improve indoor air quality, air W2 ° BHE Zﬁﬂﬁﬁgii P AR ERG
purifying equipment were placed in the premises and the air ~ FTINE =R F(LRME _IEHE/?/%*
conditioning system was cleaned periodically. These measures 4t ° ZFHEMEEIE T 58 - FE KK
filtered out pollutants, contaminants and dust particles and ~ EEFERL - e MEERZEREERFES A
resulted in maintaining indoor air quality at a satisfactory level. R K o

CLIMATE CHANGE RIREZE

The Group recognises the importance of the identification,  AEEEHZHIIFE R - B Ki#EE S KRR
mitigation and adaption of significant climate-related issues. HEMENEEN - At - ~AEBBANE
Therefore, the Group is committed to managing the potential ~ JE AL & $§%@%i‘%/§§béﬁ B SRR AR
climate-related risks which may impact the Group’s business AR - AEEDHERES(CBEK RIR
activities. The Group has formulated the Climate Change Policy iﬁﬂlﬁ LA 28 Bl B2 Rk ﬁ“ & & 1% 45 B8 [
and Environmental Policy to identify and mitigate different o BEAN - REED#ET 'ﬁﬂ%@%ﬂjuﬁﬁ
climate-related risks. Additionally, the Group has performed J//(E%%)”JU B H XS A EEE'J/%EE
a climate change assessment to identify and mitigate the b o REEE f@ﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁ% I a7 {d 45
potential risks that may arise from its business operations. % 7N £5 [ T B A SR AR A 3L B IEXQ
The result of the assessment will be reviewed regularly by the ATNEE :

management of the Group. Climate-related risks faced by the

Group mainly stem from the following dimensions:

Ny, mERERERARART —B-=FER
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Transition Risks

As the climate legislation and regulations will be more
stringent to support the global vision of carbon neutrality, the
Group’s business operations may be materially and adversely
affected if it fails to comply with the laws and regulations
applicable to its businesses from time to time. Negative
publicity may also arise due to failure to meet the compliance
requirements for climate change. The Group’s related capital
investment and compliance costs thus increase. In response
to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends,
policies and regulations relevant to climate change and be
prepared to alert the top management where necessary to
avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or litigation costs
due to delayed response.

In addition, there are increasing number of investors who
advocate combating climate change and customers who
seek low-carbon logistics solutions. If the Group fails to
implement effective measures to meet such expectations and
market change, the Group may lose potential investment
and experience reduced demand for its services. As a
countermeasure, the Group maintains high transparency in its
ESG policies, reports and related activities to build trust and
confidence with investors and customers.

Physical Risks

As the frequency and magnitude of extreme weather events
intensify, the Group's supply chain would be affected to
a degree that it would disrupt product flow and shipping
worldwide. The Group relies on the third-party logistics service
providers for the transport of wine products. Delivery of wine
products may be disrupted due to adverse weather conditions,
which could result in delayed or lost delivery of products, and
may lead to loss of the Group’s revenue. If the labelling, sealing
and packaging of wine products are damaged as a result of
inappropriate handling during the transportation process, the
Group may have to lower the selling prices of such damaged
products, which will result in a decrease in its profit margin
and adversely affect its profitability. To strengthen business
resiliency in face of extreme weather events, the Group has
developed strategies for mitigating and responding to them
across its value chain. Measures taken by the Group to stabilise
the supply chain will be mentioned in the section headed
“Supply Chain Management”.
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Long-term effects such as the change of temperature may
also cause damage to the quality and supply of the Group's
products. In particular, wine companies are vulnerable to the
physical risk because alcoholic beverages are easily affected
by external factors such as the temperature. To ensure quality
control of products, the Group evaluates the possible extreme
weather events that can damage the quality or supply of the
products, and inspects the cooling system regularly.

EMPLOYMENT

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group. The
Group recognises that its continued success is dependent
on employees’ talents and their dedication. Employment
policies are formally documented in the Employee Handbook,
covering various aspects, such as recruitment, compensations,
remuneration, diversity and equal opportunities. The Group
periodically reviews existing policies and employment practices
to ensure continuous improvement of its employment
standards and competitiveness against service providers of the
similar industry. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total
of 30 employees (as at 31 March 2022: 45 employees).
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Breakdown of the employees by gender, age group,
employment type, employee category and geographical region

as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023
R-BE-=%=H=+-—H

By Gender
BB

B Male

S

B Female
g

By Age Group
BEERAR

M 18 - 25 years old
18E255%

71 26 -35 years old
26Z355%
36 — 45 years old
36E455%

B 46 - 55 years old
ABZE555%

B 56 or above
5658k A £

By Employment Type
ZEmER

M Full-time
28

B Part-time
i
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As at 31 March 2022
R-B-—£=A=+-8

By Gender
gzl

B Male
B

B Female
pegi

By Age Group
BREFRAR

M 18 - 25 years old
18255,

71 26 - 35 years old
26ZE355%
36 - 45 years old
36ZE455%,

M 46 - 55 years old
46ZE555%

B 56 or above
565%a A

By Employment Type
RERERR

B Full-time
28

B Part-time
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As at 31 March 2023
MR-B-_=F=A=+—H

By Employment Categories

ERARER

B Management

EEE
I Other employees
Hig g
By Geographical Region
it 12 E i,
M Hong Kong
B

B The United States
ESET

M The People’s
Republic of
China (the
“PRC")
HEE A RAME
(THhE )

France

Pz
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As at 31 March 2022
R-CEBE--f=H=+—H

By Employment Categories
REAER

M Management

EIRfE
I Other employees
Hitfgg
By Geographical Region
1% i 38 i
1 1 M Hong Kong
Va B

B The United States
E3E1

B The PRC
H
France

o

Ny BEBRERERARAE —R-SFER

69



70

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

[0 | — N
BE HEREIHRS

During the Year, the overall employee turnover rate was
85.33%(Note 1) (2022: 24.74%). The breakdown of turnover

rate for the Year and the year ended 31 March 2022 are as
follows:

Employee turnover rate by categories

RAFE - BEEEMRKAERS85.33% (Mt
T ZEZZF 1 24.74%) - RAFER
BE_T-__F=-A=+t—HBILEENK
KEBFMET AT -

2023 (Note 2) 2022 (Note 2)

RERZEERAE TRDZF ) T F R
By gender gl

- Male - B 67% 19%
- Female - it 97% 31%
By age group BERAER

- 18 - 25 years old -18E25%% 160% 33%
- 26 - 35 years old -26E3573% 114% 17%
- 36 - 45 years old -36E455% 72% 8%
- 46 - 55 years old - 46 E555% 43% 60%
- 56 years old or above - 56 AL 80% 43%
By geographical region 7 IR [ 55

- Hong Kong -B% 89% 27%
~ The PRC -3 100% -

Note 1:  The calculation formula is shown as below:
Total turnover rate = X/Y * 100%
X = Number of employees leaving employment during the
Year
Y = (Number of employees at the beginning of the Year +
Number of employees at the end of the Year)/2

Note 2:  The calculation formula of turnover rate by category is
shown as below:
Turnover rate by category = X/Y * 100%
X = Number of employees in the specified category
leaving employment during the Year
Y = (Number of employees in the specified category at
the beginning of the Year + Number of employees in the
specified category at the end of the Year)/2
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Recruitment, Diversity and Equal Opportunities

Sustainable growth of the Group relies on a non-discriminatory
recruitment process and the diversity of talents. The Group's
employees are recruited via a robust, transparent and fair
recruitment process based solely on their experience and
expertise and without regard to their age, ethnicity, origin,
gender identity, marital status, sexual orientation and religion.
The recruitment process is supported by the Group's separate
Recruitment Policy that details the recruitment process and sets
out the responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee, Vice
President of respective departments and the Human Resources
Department in ensuring that the selection process is just and
standardised.

The Group believes that all employees should have the
right to work in an environment free of discrimination,
harassment and vilification and is committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and harmonious workplace culture.
The Group emphatically states its zero-tolerance stance on any
aforementioned behaviours in the workplace of any form.

Benefits and Welfare

The Group understands that good benefits and welfare
encourages retention and fosters a sense of belonging. The
Group offers attractive remuneration packages, including
performance bonus, discretionary bonuses and sales
commission. In addition to the entitlement of leaves stipulated
in the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Group
provides other leaves to its employees, such as compassionate
leave, compensation leave, etc. Save for the aforementioned
entitlement to leaves, the employees are also entitled to
benefits such as birthday red packet, discount on the Group’s
products purchase, group medical insurance scheme and
business trip travel insurance scheme.

Family-friendly Employer

The Group was commended by the Home Affairs Bureau and
the Family Council for the Family-Friendly Employers Award
Scheme which demonstrated that the Group was successful
in implementing family-friendly practices to promote a better
work-life balance for its employees.
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Promotion and Performance Review

Employees’ salary is reviewed annually according to the
result of their performance review in the first quarter of the
financial year. Employees are promoted on the basis of their
performance and the extent to which they demonstrate the
attributes required for the higher grade. The Group also gives
preference to internal promotion to reward employee’s loyalty
and continuous effort.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

Official working hours and rest periods are clearly stated in
the Employee Handbook and are in accordance with the local
employment laws. Unless otherwise specified, employees
of non-executive grades may be compensated by way of
compensation leave should they be required to work out of
stipulated working hours in the case of urgent business needs.

Compensation and Dismissal

The Group compensates employees in accordance with the
provisions of the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of
Hong Kong, which covers employees who sustain personal
injury by accident or disease arising out of and in the course of
employment. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances
is strictly prohibited. Dismissal will be based on reasonable and
lawful grounds supported by internal policies of the Group.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with employment-related laws and regulations that
would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance, Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance and
Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
Occupational Health and Safety Management

The Group places a high priority on providing employees with
a safe and healthy working environment and is committed
to safeguarding the well-being of all employees. Working
arrangement during typhoon and rainstorm has been clearly
specified by the Group in the Employee Handbook to avoid
any confusion which might lead to safety issue. Policy on
fire precautions is also stated in the Employee Handbook to
alert its employees of the importance of fire prevention. Fire
extinguishers are strategically placed and fire exits are free
from obstruction. Meanwhile, first aid boxes are accessible in
the premise.

Work-related fatalities occurred
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2023 2022 2021
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Number of work-related fatalities
ETITRE

Work-related fatalities rate (%)
ATIT R (%)

Number of lost days due to work injury

AIEMBANITHERE

—Eg-=

2023 2022 2021
—EBC-CF —EBE-—F

Lost days due to work injury

RITEmBRHNTIERE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group,
including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance of Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group did not register any material injury
cases and working days lost due to work injury. The Group
recorded zero cases of work-related fatalities and this has been
maintained for 3 consecutive financial years.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
Provision of Training Opportunities

Training and continuous development are indispensable to the
Group's employees to keep abreast of the ever-changing trend
of the industry. The Group encourages a continuous learning
atmosphere for career development and thus provides on-
the-job training and both internal (wine tasting) and external
(Wine & Spirit Education Trust, whisky training course) courses
and workshops to its employees. This ensures that employees
not only hold relevant wine and spirit qualifications but are
also equipped with a wealth of knowledge and experience in
advising customers on picking their preferred wine or other
alcoholic beverages. In the long run, the breadth of employees’
knowledge will attract new customers and forge close bonds
with existing customers. Moreover, employees are eligible for
reimbursement on job-related training, courses and seminars
and are also entitled to apply for paid study or examination
leave. The Group holds firm belief that providing its employees
with adequate training opportunities and room for continuous
development lays a solid foundation for the Group’s continuing
success.

During the Year, the percentage of employees trained is as
follows:
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Percentage of employees trained by categories 2023 2022
ZIRERER AT —EC-=F —F-_F
Percentage of employees trained et ) ZFlfE & & 55t W7 27% 13%
By gender (Note 2) ?E"‘é—:)mju (Hat2)

- Male -5k 50% 50%
- Female - & 50% 50%
By employee category Mete2) 1R{E §4g R (M2

- Management -EBE 100% 33%
— Other employees - HfhfE 8 - 67%

Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the number of employees who took part in training by the
number of employees.

Note 2: Breakdown for employees trained by categories is

calculated by dividing the number of employees trained in
specified category by the number of employees who took
part in training.
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Training and development courses are offered throughout the ~ ANEERNRHEFIIRERREZEAEHES
Group to upgrade employee skills and knowledge. During ~ Z#HIGRH#H - RAFE - 28EFHE
the Year, all directors participated in continuous professional — BEBREEBSREF N HEFEHEBEBK KL
development activities by reading regulatory updates, and/or EFBB AT ERITEHMSEBES
attending seminars or workshops relevant to the business or FERERE -

directors’ duties.

During the Year, average training hours completed per RAFE  S2E&EBZFHEINE T

employee is as follows: N
Average training hours by categories 2023 2022
RE R 2 FHEINNE —EBC=HF —E-—F
Average training hours per &8 FIF/ N

employee Mote?) 0.93 0.84
Average training hours by gender ot 2 321 Rl 2 GG/ N (922)
- Male -5k 0.94 0.96
— Female - 0.92 0.70
Average training hours by 121 BRI 2 Tl Ny )

employee category Mot 2
- Management -ERE 3.11 2.71
— Other employees - Hitf & - 0.50

Note 1: Average training hours per employee is calculated by BiatT -
dividing the total number of training hours by the number
of employees.

Note 2: Average training hours by categories is calculated Wizt2 -
by dividing the total number of training hours for
specified category by the number of employees in the
corresponding category.
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LABOUR STANDARDS
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group guarantees that no employee will be made to work
against his/her will or be coerced to work. The recruitment of
child labour is strictly prohibited. All employees recruited by the
Group are above 18 years old. Personal data is collected and
original supporting documents are required to be presented
during the process to assist the selection of suitable candidates
and to verify the candidates’ personal data. The Human
Resources Department ensures that their identity documents
are carefully checked and periodically reviews the Group's
employment practices to avoid child labour and forced labour.
Moreover, to prevent non-compliance with labour standards,
overtime working is on a voluntary basis, which provides an
effective protection of their interests. Any violations of the
labour standards of respective jurisdictions will be investigated,
remedied and reported to the government authorities
promptly. Further, the Group shall immediately terminate the
employment contract and impose due punishment on the
erring employee. The issue will immediately be dealt with in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Regarding the wine procurement process, the Group focuses
primarily on the selection of high-quality wines from different
wine regions, varieties and styles in order to meet the diverse
preference of the customers. Therefore, procuring fine wines
under an overly rigid procurement process policy will not be
desirable. During the Year, wine suppliers were predominately
from famous wine regions.

The number of major suppliers by geographic region during
the Year is as follows:
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REAFERBEE SN EEHERNHE N
™

Geographical region 2023 2022
= —E=-= —E 4
Hong Kong 0 36 230
The PRC Gy 19 36
France EE 16 113
Australia SEM 17
United Kingdom HE 3 95
Switzerland Wt - 13
Others HAth - 47

Procurement Process

For procurement of goods and services other than the
aforementioned, the Group strives to consider suppliers’
reputation, prevailing market price and delivery time. At the
same time, the purchase of supplies is determined and adjusted
by the current inventories, expected customer demands and
projected sales trends. Where possible, the Group strives not to
over-rely on a particular supplier by maintaining more than one
supplier for each type of goods or services provided in order to
ensure the stability of the supply chain. The Group periodically
evaluates and monitors the performance of its suppliers to
ensure their compliance with quality and service standards.
Should services provided by the supplier fall below the agreed
standard, the cooperation may be terminated. During the Year,
the aforementioned supplier engagement practices have been
imposed on all suppliers.
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Managing Environmental and Social Risks of the
Supply Chain

The Group recognises that its operations are highly dependent
on a responsible and sustainable supply chain and therefore
has put considerable effort into safeguarding its values
along the supply chain to protect its principles of ethics and
legality. Relevant policies and measures are established in
the Group’s Labour Standards and Supplier Code of Conduct
and the Environmental Policy to monitor the quality of the
Group’s suppliers as well as their environmental and ethical
performance. To reduce its social and environmental risks
along the supply chain, the Group periodically evaluates
and monitors the performance of its suppliers to ensure
their compliance with laws and regulations relating to
environmental and social policies, service standards, contract
conditions and quality provisions. Any non-compliance to
relevant environmental and social laws and regulations
discovered by the designated personnel from the Group during
the assessment will be promptly reported to the management.
Corrective action plan will be carried out to remediate the
identified risk in a timely manner.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to the
environmental awareness of its suppliers and activity
promotes environmentally-preferable products and services
when selecting supplier. The Group encourages its business
partners and suppliers to consider the risks posed to their
operations from climate change and to actively mitigate their
environmental impacts. It also reiterates to its business partners
and suppliers the value brought to business in terms of more
efficient resource consumption and monitoring of wastage
during business meetings and discussion with suppliers.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has an extensive quality assurance process to
ensure that the products and services provided are not only in
compliance with relevant local laws and regulations but are
also of exceptional quality.

Quality Control

Quality management is emphasised by the Group as the quality
of alcoholic beverages is easily affected by external factors such
as the storage environment. Implementing a sound quality control
is therefore fundamental to ensuring the quality and safety of
the goods and services provided to the customers. The Group
has standardised guidelines and procedures on the storage,
delivery and packaging of products. With regard to the storage
requirements, different sets of air conditioning are strategically
switched on using the timer function to ensure that the desired
temperature and humidity is maintained for optimal wine
storage performance. In addition, a back-up power system at the
warehouse will automatically be switched on in the event of a
power failure. To maintain the quality of services provided, strict
requirements have been imposed on the storage environment of
the Group’s warehouse and retail store.

According to the Group’s Return Application Guide, product
return is available in case of any quality issues verified by the
Group upon presenting the proof of purchase. Upon receiving
the customer’s return request, the management Group will
verify the reason for the return and obtain relevant proof.
Products will be recalled and remediations will be taken in
a timely fashion if any issues are found related to product
quality or food safety. Analysis on the product recall incident
will also be carried out to prevent the incident recurrence and
implement corrective actions where necessary in continual
improvement on the quality assurance practices. During the
Year, the Group did not record any material recalls of products
sold or shipped subjects to safety and health reasons.

Customer Satisfaction

Feedbacks and complaints from the Group's customers are
highly valued as it is of vital importance to the continuous
development of the Group. Procedures for handling feedbacks
have been set up. Should the Group receive any complaints,
the Group will strive to act in a timely manner to resolve the
issue with effective corrective actions. In addition, complaints
of significant weight received will be discussed and reviewed
by the management during regular meetings to prevent
reoccurrence. During the Year, the Group did not record any
product or service-related complaints.
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Data Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to safeguarding all sensitive
information pertaining to its customers. Unauthorised access
to the Group's information system and disclosure of terms
of business with customers and suppliers, marketing plans
and sales forecasts or any proposals relating to the Group
are strictly prohibited. Moreover, employees of the Group are
required to sign the Employee Non-disclosure Agreement and
are held accountable to the consequences of disseminating
confidential information of the customers without prior
consent.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group recognises the gravity of improper dissemination
of information on alcoholic products and the consequences
of providing alcohol to minors. Therefore, the Group is aware
of the importance of accuracy of its promotional material.
Promotional banners and leaflets produced for such activities
were subjected to strict compliance with the Trade Description
Ordinance. Any false, misleading or incomplete information
and misstatements regarding such materials are strictly
prohibited.

Furthermore, following the enforcement of the Dutiable
Commodities (Amendment) Ordinance 2018 on 30 November
2018, the Group’s retail stores are required to display a sign
containing both Chinese and English versions of the prescribed
notice in a prominent location easily seen by the public.
Therefore, the Group remains vigilant to prevent the sale and
supply of intoxicating liquor to minors and the veracity of its
marketing materials.

On the other hand, the Group considers that labelling matters
is not material to the Group.

Intellectual Property (“IP") Rights

The Group actively monitors the overall use, registration and
management of intangible IP rights and put in place anti-
counterfeiting measures. The Group has obtained registration
of the Group’s trademarks in Hong Kong. The domain name
was also registered. In addition, the Group strictly prohibits
employees to install any unauthorised and illegal computer
and application software to ensure that IP rights are observed
and protected.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations concerning health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services and methods of redress that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to
the Dutiable Commodities (Amendment) Ordinance 2018 and
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Solid corporate governance is vital to the Group’s sustainable
growth. The Group emphatically asserts its zero-tolerance
stance regarding any behaviours that not only violate laws
and regulations of Hong Kong but also severely damage the
business integrity and reputation of the Group.

Anti-bribery and Anti-Corruption Practices

The Group has established the Anti-bribery and Corruption
Policy in relation to accepting business courtesies and
gratuities. The said policy outlines the standards of behaviours
for employees regarding business ethics, anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, conflict of interests and data confidentiality to
ensure that the Group’'s businesses and operations are of
high ethical standard. The said policy has also clearly stated
the circumstances in which the employee may accept said
courtesies and gratuities and is required to declare such
courtesies and gratuities to the Head of Department. Bribery,
fraud and corruption in any form or in relation to any parties
are all strictly prohibited in the Group.

The Group endeavours to maintain a culture of integrity,
transparency and accountability by adhering to stringent anti-
corruption practices. To prevent corrupt practices during its
business operation, Directors and employees are required to
undergo anti-corruption training to familiarise themselves
with the current legislation, the identification of and correct
procedures to report corrupt practices. During the Year, the
Directors and employees of the Group have received a total
of 18 hours and 6 hours of anti-corruption training on anti-
corruption-related legislations, corporate integrity governance
and ethics, respectively.

Y 75 SR A R T

B HERELSERE

BT EER AR

RAREE > KEBI B ERERERH
ERkRBHEFERELSE  BE - 28K
FBEEURBRAENERRER &
FBEAEREB(ZT—\FERHRSD (&
21) 101 R CEAE R (FLEE) 1&51) ¥
NEBEREATZENBR -

RES
BRENEXESHAKENBEEREH
ER - AEEBRFELHETATEERER
ERNER  EBREBREAEERBHE
RBENTRBTEROREE °

R B R R 'S 1E A

AEBEREZBHRERBEYH ERE
MESHBR - LR EERNEE
BRE RESMREE  MaERkBUE
RE T ENITRIEE  ABRARENE
BREENARBRIEE - LABERID
PREHAEEZEY LR BNEDNE
o WERKAMFITERSERRBELE
Yo REBBEEEFMPAIEIMALHIA
MR - BREREDS -

AEBEBNEBEFEROREISED
REFFR BRMEEENIE - /L
HEXBELZHLRAERTR EFREEA
BEXRESHE  ATRITER - #HE
BITRNMEENREIGEREF - RAF
B AEEEENEENRIEX T A8
IR 6N RESHEBIE - BERW
EEARBIERT TR RESE -

—E-=5EH

31



82

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE HERELEE

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

A whistle-blowing mechanism is in place for the employees
and external stakeholders to report any kinds of malpractices
and suspected misconduct through our reporting channels,
including telephone, e-mail, and letter at any time. The
Group protects the identity of whistle-blower and keeps the
reported information confidential. Internal investigation will be
undergone to verify the reported cases and remedial actions
will be taken where necessary based on the result findings of
the investigation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering that would have a
significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. During the
Year, there were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group’s people-oriented culture is not confined within
the Group's operation. The Group has long been caring for
local communities and has policies on addressing social and
community needs via community investment. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has temporarily suspended
the organisation of voluntary activities.

Going forward, the Group will expand its efforts in charity
work to cater to the needs of its community as well as to
create a more favourable environment for its community and
business by focusing on contributing to social welfare, health
and culture.

For the Year, the Group continued to be awarded the
Caring Company Logo under the Caring Company Award
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the seventh
consecutive year. These recognitions exemplified the Group's
effort and dedication in adopting socially responsible business
practices. The Group has future plans to further give back to
the society through a more active participation in community
programmes, which not only benefits the society but also
nurtures a good corporate culture.
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Furthermore, the Group has actively participated in various  HEX @ AEBERAFEEHL2HEZIHES
charity events in the Year, including sponsoring the Hong Kong /&%) - BIEEBIEBSEEH R K 70 AF
Christian Service 70th Anniversary Charity Run, donating to ~ Z#Z# - MEZEREERF LBRALX
the To-Gather Parents Resource Centre, and supporting the  EBBEBEHRBETMEERSH L -
Fortune and Un Chau Neighbourhood Elderly Centres of the ASEZEHZEZEABEEBANERR
Hong Kong Christian Service. The Group’s overarching goal  fE - BH K% - BRlFKZE - BEA L

is to assist vulnerable groups, such as low-income or single- ARV EEEZHEEHE  UWEREES
parent families, elderly individuals, children with special needs, HEE o

persons with disabilities, and ethnic minorities, in achieving a
better quality of life.

Y S TEERCRERAT —S-=EE% 83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERELSWRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

MR ERE

Section/Statement

EH B9

B P (BRIE - HEREBRREE
51) ARSI

Governance Structure
ERRE

Reporting Principles
wERA

Reporting Boundary
e

Subject Areas, Aspects,

Board Statement — The ESG Governance Structure
EEOEE-IRE  HERERNELRERE

Reporting Framework
HEER

Reporting Scope
wEEHE

General Disclosures, and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
FTEHE EEH - —REER
BREMIER i 5, B
Aspect A1: Emissions
EE AT - BB
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— MR EE BRBERIBEERBYR - mKELIH  HERY
s AENBEEERVNELFTH
(@) X K
(b) HETFHBETAFEATENIEA
EERERHERS o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Air Emissions

FASHE ISR A
KPI A1.2

BB BURIZAT.2

KPI'A1.3

BB IR A3

emissions data.

e IE SR M AR R B B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (BE1) kepRAEE (BE2) &
=RBEBHWR (AWEHE) &k (W@ER) &
B (WABESEN - BERETHE) °
Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEFXEEEEDESE (UBTE) &
(ER) B (MABEEEAM - §18
Bt -
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R

Description

#

=1

itEREREE

Section/Declaration

= BH

Aspect A1: Emissions

EmA1: e
KPI A1.4

FAREMIEIRAL4

KPI A1.5
BASHE ISR A5

KPI' A1.6

FAREMIEIRALE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—MRIKEE

KPI A2.1

BASRAE SRR A2.1

KPI'A2.2

A BURIZ A2.2

KPI'A2.3

A IRIZ A2.3

Y cmRRERERARAE —%==

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
PEABEREZEYRAE (UNEEHE) &
(WEA) BE (MABEESM - B8
RHEETE) -

Description of emission target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

HIFTET I I B R R RERZER
IRFTERER A AP B8R ©

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
BB EEREEEEMNTE
RINHELEEERRBESZEREM
FRERE) 5 o

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

Eﬂ@%ﬁﬁ(a%m/
) BEER

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.qg. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kwWh in "000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

Eﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ%&/ﬁﬁ&w/(m

K E A R

T Rmaoh) EFEE (UTETRE
§ ))S)iff“(ﬁuut&g“u ESAERg]

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

wRKERTE (MABESEM - 518
RiEEE) -

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

fRAL AT RT MR REIR 2 A Mk B R R i
HaZE BRI L8R -

Emissions — Waste Management

B - EEYER

Emissions — GHG Emissions

BERR YD -

BEREEHEX

Emissions — Waste Management

e - ERYERE

Use of Resources

BREM

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BIREM - BERBRE

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BRER - KRERE

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BIREM - BelRERE

R
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures, and KPIs

FEHE  EmE -

—BREER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

B BH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : ERER

KPI A2.4

BRESIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5

FASRAERIEIRA2.5

Description of whether there is any issue

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

ot sKEUGEAKR LA B A HEE - B
KR B AR M ARAE D% B IR PR EREEY
g

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

R MFTABREMENBE (ABEEE)
NEEEBMEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 RERXKARER

General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI A3.1

B EIR A3

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEAL : RIZEL

General Disclosure

—RIBE

KPI A4.1

FARERIEIR AT

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.

AR EITALIRE N ARAERENER
TENBER

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

Rl EBEBEIRIE N ARABIRNEKR
TEREERREEEHAZENTTE -

Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.

BRI SRE DR BN AR BT
AR E R REAE /B AR -
Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

WD T ENIEEFERTANE
RRIRBFERRE - AN EIEH R
PREXHTTED o
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Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BREM - KRB

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Material
(Not applicable — Explained)

BRER - EAEEMH
(TEA - EFE)

The Environment and Natural

Resources

RIBPRAREIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Indoor Air Quality

RENARRER - ENEREE

Climate Change
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General Disclosures, and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHR  EBEEH - —REER
BRARER it BH, B
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
— MR EE B NrE BEEREA - IR ERE
BRE - TEHE - Zalt  RERUR
Hib 58 MM
(@ B R
(b) BIFHBETAGEAZENHBZE
BIERIER -
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Employment
type, age group and geographical
region.
BB RIEIE BT IR - XEER - FheER K B
@ Bl 5 HE B AR -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age  Employment
group and geographical region.
RSB RUIE1IRB1.2 It FirER R EDHNEERR (ERE

-G EElE Gl

TEC=FFR
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures, and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TESHE  EBEH —REER

BREMIER Rt BH, B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BHEB2: BEHEZS

General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety

— AR R

KPI B2.1

FAS B IR IR B2.1

KPI B2.2
FASIA ISR B2.2
KPI B2.3

FASR AR N5 B2.3

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational

hazards.
FRRHLZ2TIERRERREREES @EERETSE
BEMREEN
(@) XK K
(b) BETFTEHEITABERTENEBE
BERERBERS
Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety

fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting year.
BE=FZF (BRBSFE) #40RE RREZSE
Tt THI AR R L -

Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
ETEBEEATIERS - EEER S

Description of occupational health and  Health and Safety —
safety measures adopted, and how they Occupational Health and Safety

are implemented and monitored. Management
RO PR B ERERT 2R - A ERERS
NBBRITRERTTE - — BERRERT2ER

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #EKRIE
General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI'B3.1

BB IR 1R B3.1

Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
knowledge and skills for discharging — Provision of Training
duties at work. Description of training Opportunities

activities.

BRRAEEETTEREMNANBE LY BEREE

BERVIBUR - fIEIEE) - -RR#tEIIgE

The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
by gender and employee category — Provision of Training
(e.g. senior management, middle Opportunities
management).

BRI R EEER (NSREERE - PR BREIE

ERES) AnmMXIEEASL - - RR#tEIIgE
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Section/Declaration

= BH

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEB3 : &8 RIZI

KPI B3.2

BASAE WIETIR B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EHE B4 : 3 TR

General Disclosure

—RRIFE

KPI B4.1

RASAENIETR B4
KPI B4.2

FRSEAERIE IR B4.2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmBS5 : HEEERE

General Disclosure

—ARINEE
KPI B5.1

BASE B IR 1R B5. 1

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee

mIR REEERIE S -
S TR o

Information on:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRI IEET MogHI% T

BFHETARBEKR
BIERIER -
Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

iR R E PN B AR R E T K

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

IR E R BN HRBRIE R

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

ERHERNRE M SRARBUR -
Number of suppliers by geographical

@B DR ERHEAE -

Development and Training
— Provision of Training
Opportunities

R &IE
- REEIIKE

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour

SRR -BIIEET R®HI%T

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour

SRR - B IEET R®HI%T

Labour Standards — Prevention
of Child and Forced Labour

BRI - BLET RAHSET

Supply Chain Management

HERERE
Supply Chain Management

s E 2

Ny, mERERERARART —B-=FER
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures, and KPIs Description
TESHE  EBEH —REER

Section/Declaration

B BH

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : ftrEgEEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

FRS AR IR B5.2 AR R ERED - MERTT
EREPNEEREE - ARBED
HIT REERITE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

FASR B RUIEIRB5.3 T 2B R P 1 BRI Nkt & R P (R
FREEH - ARBRRIEMRNITMESR
JIE

KPI B5.4
environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

BB E ISR B5.4 i 2 B 33 L P R A T T IR AR EE om S AR T
PREFREVIED] - AR B BIEHIR#MITR
BERAE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EmEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

— MR R EHREERMREHERELZ S -
B 2B RFLBEEE AR AR
(@) BE: K
(b) BFEHBITABERFEMNEBE
BREHRBER -
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Supply Chain Management —
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REBERE

Supply Chain Management —
Managing Environmental and

Social Risks of the Supply Chain

HEEEE -
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Rk

Supply Chain Management —
Managing Environmental and

Social Risks of the Supply Chain
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Description

#

=1

Section/Declaration

= BH

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

KPI B6.1

BASRAE IR 1R B6. 1

KPI B6.2

B4R NFE15 B6.2

KPI B6.3

BASR B RUIEIRB6.3

KPI B6.4

B E1R B6.4

KPI B6.5

FASR B RUIEIRB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EWB7 : KES
General Disclosure

— AR R

Ny 5145 T M A R

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons.

EEXDEXERARTRAR 2 RER

BHmMARKNBED L -

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

B n M RIS ARREBGR BB A M S

JIE

Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

ot S8 <7 MR E R B EE B RARIED -

Description of quality assurance process

and recall procedures.

HE SR TERIEREREWER
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
OB B & ERHRIE RFLBIBGR -
HEARITRERTEA -

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI LR - BR - BGF RO

BER &

(a
(
BERERHER

)
b) BETHEITAGEAFENHEBZE

Product Responsibility —
Quality Control

Emaff -

oo B P

Product Responsibility —
Customer Satisfaction

EmEE-

BEEMEE

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property (“IP")
Rights

EmBE - MHEERE ((HHE
1)

Product Responsibility — Quality
Control

EmEM - mEE

Product Responsibility — Data
Privacy Protection

EmBE - BREALRE

Anti-corruption

RES

—E-=5EH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE  -ERELIEE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures, and KPIs Description
TEHR  EBEE - —REER

BREARIER it

Section/Declaration

B BH

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : RES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RS E IEIZ BT #i&iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁ/kiﬁﬁéﬁﬂjjta
BENBSHARMOEE LFAER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

BASAE RIEIRBT.2 el LB 45 e M AR AR - A SRR
TRERTE -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

BARAE WIEIRBT.3 M EENE TRENRESEI -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEB8 : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

—R IR BRALGTESE T BEIT AL BRI
EREELBRAER I ERLET
I ABUR ©

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.qg.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

AR UIRIR BS.1 ARG (HE  BEEE 4T
JR R e BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.

RASRAE ISR BB.2 EEIBREMPHRER (N ENERE) o
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Anti-corruption

REF

Anti-corruption —
Whistle-blowing Mechanism

RET - B

Anti-corruption — Anti-bribery
and Anti-corruption Practices
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Community Investment

HERE

Community Investment

HEKE
Community Investment
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The major
operating subsidiary of the Company primarily engages in the
wholesale and retail of a wide spectrum of wine products and
other alcoholic beverages in Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Details of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on pages 118 to 119 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the Year (2022: Nil) to the shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") to be held
on Monday, 14 August 2023, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 10 August 2023 to
Monday, 14 August 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 August 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial
position, and the information on the compliance with laws
and regulations, environmental policy and relationships with
stakeholders are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Furthermore, a
fair review of, and an indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business are set out in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, since the end of the Year, no
important event affecting the Group has occurred.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operation, business
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group relating to its businesses:

The Group experiences cash flow mismatches in the
business operation. Delay in the settlement of payments
by the customers may result in untimely and significant
cash flow shortcomings in the future and may adversely
impact the Group’s cash position and results of
operations.

The Group has substantial indebtedness and high gearing
ratios.

The Group recorded a net operating cash inflow for
the Year but may have difficulty meeting the payment
obligations if the Group records net operating cash
outflow in the future.

The Group recorded a relatively high inventory turnover
days and is exposed to the risk of slow-moving
inventories, which may adversely affect the cash flow and
liquidity.

Any increase in the purchase prices of wine products that
the Group cannot pass on to customers may reduce its
profitability.

Changes in market trends and customer tastes and
preferences could cause the sales to decline.

Opening of new flagship store and retail store in Hong
Kong may not contribute to the growth of the Group’s
business as planned.

The business, results of operations and financial condition
may be affected by seasonality.

The acquisition and set up of the own warehousing
facility may result in an increase in the depreciation
expenses of the Group.

Any quality issues relating to the Group’s wine products
could adversely affect the reputation and business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Group does not have product liability insurance
and may not be adequately protected from any product
liability claim and/or potential loss.

The Group has a relatively short track record in retail
business and the historical financial results in respect of
the retail business may not be indicative of the future
performance.

The Group may be subject to tax penalties and additional
tax liabilities.

Any deterioration or termination of the relationships with
the major suppliers may result in severe disruptions to the
operations and loss of revenue.

Any deterioration or termination of the relationships
with the major customers may materially and adversely
affect the business, results of operations and financial
condition.

The Group’s operations are subject to certain risks
associated with the transportation processes and storage
conditions of the wine products.

The Group has limited insurance coverage which could
expose the Group to significant costs and business
disruptions.

The continuing success of the Group depends on the
senior management and the abilities to retain, motivate
and recruit appropriately skilled talents.

The series of anti-corruption campaigns and reforms
launched by the PRC government may adversely affect
the sales of the wine products.

If the PRC government tightens its customs controls over
wine products, demand from customers who purchase
the Group's wine products for consumption in or resale
to the PRC may decrease.

The Group’s lease renewals are affected by conditions of
the rental market.
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—  The Group's results of operations may be affected by
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

—  The Group may be unable to maintain rapid growth and
implement the future plans.

For other risks and uncertainties that the Group faces, please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
For the Group’s approach on risk management and internal
controls, please refer to page 43 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year (2022: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s distributable reserves
available for distribution is approximately HK$39.0 million
(2022: HK$40.7 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders unless otherwise
required by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENT

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. Please also refer to “Capital Structure”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this
annual report.

On the Listing Date, upon listing on the Stock Exchange, the
Company has issued 120,000,000 shares at HK$0.75 each
with net proceeds of approximately HK$64.2 million.

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
no equity-linked agreement that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or (ii) requires the Company enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares, was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the reporting year.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to which
the Company will maintain a stable dividend payout ratio in
future and strive to attain a stable-to-rising dividend ratio. The
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and
shares its profits with the Shareholders. The dividend payout
ratio shall be determined or recommended as appropriate, by
the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account
the Company’s financial position, its ability to generate cash
flow, its future development needs and prospects, and subject
to:

- the Articles;

—  the applicable restrictions and requirements under the
laws of the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or after funding covenants by which the
Company is bound from time to time;

— the investment and operation requirement of the
Company; and

- any other factors that have material impact on the
Company.
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DIRECTORS

During the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual
report, the Directors are named as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Tung

Non-executive Director
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung $.8.5, B.8.S., J.P

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie M.H., J.P

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon

Mr. Liu Kin Wai (appointed on 1 March 2023)

Mr. Wong Hin Wing m.H. (resigned on 1 March 2023)

Pursuant to article 16.18 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific team) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Accordingly, Ms. Yeung Chi Hung and Mr. Chan Sze Tung
will retire pursuant to article 16.18 of the Articles, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to article 16.2 of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election of such meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Liu Kin Wai will retire pursuant to article 16.2
of the Articles, and being eligible, offer himself for re-election
Director at the forthcoming AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
as at the date of this annual report and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 24 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract
with the Company on 18 December 2017 for an initial term
of three years, commencing from the Listing Date (subject
to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant service agreement) and their service contracts have
been renewed for further three years commencing from 12
January 2021.

The non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company on 18 December 2017 for an initial term
of three years, commencing from the Listing Date (subject
to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment). The letter of appointment with
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung has been renewed for further three years
commencing from 12 January 2021.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company. Ms. Chan Man Ki
Maggie has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 13 June 2019 to 12 June
2022 and her letter of appointment has been renewed with
no specific term commencing from 13 June 2022. Mr. Chan
Cham Man Simon has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 1 December 2021
to 30 November 2024. Mr. Liu Kin Wai has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
1 March 2023 to 28 February 2026.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have entered into
any service contract or letter of appointment with any member
of the Group (including agreements expiring or determinable
by any member of the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation).
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TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or a connected entity of a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year, nor was
there any transaction, arrangements or contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There
was also no contract of significance between the Company or
one of the subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors are entitled to director fees, salaries,
discretionary bonus with reference to the market comparables,
time commitment and the performance of the Group as
well as the contributions to retirement schemes. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors on a named basis during
the Year are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of director fees, salaries, benefits
in kind and/or discretionary bonuses with reference to those
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and the
performance of the Group. The Group also reimburses the
Directors and senior management for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred for the provision of
services to the Group or executing their functions in relation to
the operations of the Group. The Group regularly reviews and
determines the remuneration and compensation packages of
the Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of remuneration and compensation
paid by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and the performance of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
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Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings FORBMT ¢
contained in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were
as follows:
Interests in the Company RARAT 2=
Percentage of
shareholding in the
Number of Company’s issued
Name of Director Nature of interests Shares held share capital
RARF
BRTRAZ
Esps EEME FERO#E BRAEDH
Ms. Shirley Wong® Interest of a controlled 280,000,000 (L) 70%

corporation
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Ms. Shirley Wong is the sole shareholder of Shirz Limited and
she is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Shirz Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company has registered
an interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(ii) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to required standard of dealings.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporations” above, at no time during the Year were any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
the chief executive of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY AND OTHER PERSONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2023, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) will have or be deemed or taken to have an interest
or short position in the Shares or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which would be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

EFEHE

ARAEERRREMALTRA
DNERAD - HERO R EERZ
BEIARINRAQATHEME
ftb AR Bt K B 2 (R A4 E AR R

HREZFMM BE_T_=F=A=+-—
B PIAL (UFFEFEHARAEETT
BAR) BREROHARBEERD DS
BREIBRSREFREAREZZNEE
{GRBIEXVERE 2 30 B 2 XA AR
RIRBEZEEIRE  IRBEFNMAE
BRI 26 336 1R K AR 8N B L it 2 HE2E =X
KR

Percentage of
shareholding in the

Number of Company’s issued
Name of shareholders Nature of interests Shares held share capital
RAARERT
RREH BEtE FERO#HE REzBREDL
Shirz Limited®? Beneficial owner 280,000,000 (L) 70%
BRBEAA
Mr. Roy Ting® Interest of spouse 280,000,000 (L)@ 70%
THEBEELEY R BER
Notes: Higt -

(1) The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Ms. Shirley Wong is the sole shareholder of Shirz Limited and
she is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Shirz Limited.

(3)  Mr. Roy Ting is the spouse of Ms. Shirley Wong and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares Ms. Shirley Wong is
interested in pursuant to the SFO.

(1) FEIARZLALTRBEBESO LT

=

(2) FEZE& ML+ AShirz Limited 2 M — %3 -
HU % #5485 A F Shirz Limited B 15 B 15 7 #E
i o

) TEREERELZBALLTZEMG  HRE
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had any interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which would be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO, and/or who are directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 March 2023, no other
person is individually or collectively entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at
the general meetings of the Company and are able, as a
practicable manner, to direct or influence the management of
the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales for the Year generated from the
Group’s major customers is as follows:

—  the largest customer 8.7%

—  five largest customers 36.5%
The percentage of cost of sales for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

—  the largest supplier 22.7%

—  five largest suppliers 50.5%
None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or its five largest suppliers for the Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having been made a specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and code of
conduct regarding securities transactions throughout the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or the controlling shareholders or substantial
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the
Company or their respective close associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) were considered to have any interests
in a business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
and/or caused, or was likely to cause any other conflicts of
interest with the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the deed of non-competition (the
"Deed"”) of each of Ms. Shirley Wong, Mr. Roy Ting and Shirz
Limited (collectively, the “Obligors”), details of which were set
out in the Prospectus, has been fully complied and enforced
during the Year. The Company has obtained an annual written
confirmation from each of the Obligors in relation to their
compliance with the terms of the Deed and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the undertakings under
the Deed and evaluated the effective implementation of the
Deed during the Year. The Board also confirms that there
are no other matters in relation to the aforesaid undertaking
which should be brought to the attention of the shareholders
and the potential investors of the Group.
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LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANT
RELATING TO SPECIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 10 March 2021, Wine’s Link Limited (“Wine's Link"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower; Hang
Seng Bank Limited (“Lender A"), as lender; and the Company
as guarantor, entered into a banking facility letter (the “Facility
Letter A"). This Facility Letter A comprises a revolving loan
facility, a credit facility and a corporate credit card, with a
maximum facility of HK$50,000,000, HK$30,000,000 and
HK$100,000, respectively, which are agreed to be made
available by the Lender A to Wine's Link on the terms and
conditions contained therein and subject to, among others,
review by the Lender A at any time and the Lender A's
overriding right of repayment on demand, including the
right to call for cash cover on demand for prospective and
contingent liabilities.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12
March 2021 for more details.

The facilities under the Facility Letter A were reviewed
and renewed by Lender A on 20 May 2022 and have been
subsequently cancelled on 3 February 2023.

On 26 November 2021, Wine’s Link, as borrower; Chong Hing
Bank Limited (“Lender B"”), as lender; and the Company as
guarantor, entered into a banking facility letter (“Facility Letter
B") to renew the banking facilities granted by the Lender B on
12 March 2021. This Facility Letter B comprises a trade facility,
a term loan and an overdraft facility, with a maximum facility
of HK$48,000,000, HK$20,000,000 and HK$3,000,000,
respectively, which are agreed to be made available by the
Lender B to Wine's Link on the terms and conditions contained
therein and subject to, among others, review by the Lender
B from time to time and the Lender B’s overriding right of
repayment on demand.

Pursuant to Facility Letter B, the Company shall procure Ms.
Shirley Wong and Mr. Roy Ting, the controlling shareholders
of the Company continue to be the single largest shareholder
and jointly hold not less than 50% beneficial interest of the
Company.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Shirley Wong and Mr. Roy

Ting, by virtual of their spousal relationship, together hold
70% interest in the Company.
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Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 26
November 2021 and 12 March 2021 for more details.

Pursuant to a letter from Lender B dated 4 July 2022, the
facilities under the Facility Letter B would continue to be made
available to Wine's Link with terms and conditions substantially
the same as those under the Facility Letter B.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) conditionally
approved and adopted in compliance with Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules by written resolutions of all the Shareholder
passed on 18 December 2017. The following summary does
not form, nor is intended to be, part of the Share Option
Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting the interpretation
of the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to subscribe for Shares
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (”Share Options”)
to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

(b) Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer eligible
persons (being any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or adviser of the Group
who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed
to and/or will contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible
Persons”) to subscribe for such number of Shares in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

(c) Total number of Shares may be issued upon
exercise of all options

(i)  The maximum aggregate number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Share Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company, must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time.
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(i)  The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes involving the issue or grant of options or
similar rights over Shares or other securities by the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (without taking into account the Shares
which may be issued and allotted pursuant to the
exercise of the options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme) (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) unless Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained pursuant to sub-paragraph (iv) below.

(iii) The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by the
Shareholders of the Company in general meeting
from time to time provided always that the Scheme
Mandate Limit so renewed must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the approval of such renewal by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
Upon such renewal, all Share Options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company (including
those exercised, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any
other share options of the Company) prior to the
approval of such renewal shall not be counted for
the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit. A circular must be sent to the Shareholders of
the Company containing such relevant information
from time to time as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

(iv) The Board may seek separate Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting to grant options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Share
Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Persons specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is
sought and the Company must issue a circular to
the Shareholders of the Company containing such
relevant information from time to time as required
by the GEM Listing Rules in relation to any such
proposed grant to such Eligible Persons.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 40,000,000, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report. As at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023, the
total number of Share Options available for grant under the
Share Option Scheme was 40,000,000.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

No Share Option may be granted to any Eligible Person
which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options already granted or to be granted to such
Eligible Person under the Share Option Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in
the twelve-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of such
grant. Any grant of further share options above this limit
shall be subject to certain requirements provided under
the GEM Listing Rules.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

Acceptance of option

An offer shall be accepted when the Company receives
the duly signed offer letter together with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 (or such other sum in
any currency as the Board may determine).

Period of exercising the option

(i)  Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Share
Option Scheme, a Share Option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the terms of grant thereof at any
time during the applicable option period, which is
not more than ten years from the date of grant of
option.

(i)  There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which a Share Option must be held or
the performance targets which must be achieved
before a Share Option can be exercised under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. However, at the
time of granting any Share Option, the Board may,
on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to
such conditions, restrictions or limitations including
(without limitation) those in relation to the
minimum period of the Share Options to be held
and/or the performance targets to be achieved as
the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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(h) Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a business
day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(i) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the date on which
the Share Option Scheme is adopted.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme and there are no outstanding share
options at the end of the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee on 18 December
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of
the CG Code. The audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements, and
adequate disclosures have been made.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. None of these related party
transactions constituted a connected transaction as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules for the Year.

During the Year, the Company has no non-exempt connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital are held by the public at
all times throughout the period from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to implementing good corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 47 of this
annual report.

THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held at Room
901-5, 9/F, China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong on Monday, 14 August
2023 at 2:30 p.m. and the notice convening such meeting
will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in the
manner as required by the GEM Listing Rules in due course.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events affecting the Group after the
Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 5 July 2021. ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited was then appointed as the independent auditor
of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the said
resignation.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, who will retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board
has taken the Audit Committee's recommendation that a
resolution for their re-appointment as independent auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of
independent auditor during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Chi Hung
Chairman and non-executive Director
Hong Kong, 20 June 2023

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

)y

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINE’S LINK INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wine's Link International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 118 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR

Key Audit Matters

BREEEH

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FARETFEESRBERMNEEHE - R
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the  AUARNHGETBERENBIZRAEEN
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These — FIH c ELFIEEE R M B BEHGEEY
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the  BHELTEEERKETERIEN - JMD
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming SHELEFREHEBOHER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREITEE

Valuation of inventories

FRIGE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant degree of judgements
by management of the Group associated with
identifying slow-moving inventories based on the
ageing analysis and determining the net realisable
values which are based on the current market
condition and recent selling price of inventories.

BB GEEAEABRETEE  DREEHRER
MELHGEVBEBRRBEE e EXEEEE
e 2 BEARHE - HEERIRE B HTFENUR

Net realisable value is the estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature.
Management of the Group will reassess the
estimations on a product-by-product basis at the
end of the reporting period and write down for
obsolete inventories will be made when necessary.
As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of
inventories as at 31 March 2023 amounted to
HK$138,765,000.
ARRFER—REKABREPEAEERMGTLE
X o ZEMEtDEREREMANAEUTE LS
EmZBELR - EEEEREEHNREHRERE
HEmMBHAEZEGLS TRV ERFBERER
EVEHMOR o MANER A MR T4 RS HEE -
BHE_T-_="F=A=+—0 FENEKHEEEZ
138,765,000 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMWETNMHRARE S HETRER

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
inventories included:

AN FENGE BPANEREFOT

J understanding the management’s process in
identifying slow-moving inventories, which is
by making reference to the inventory ageing
analysis, and determining the net realisable values
of the inventories;

THREREBNFHTE SREERKRSTT) &
BErFENr2EFENRER

o checking the accuracy of the ageing analysis
of inventories, on a sample basis, to purchase
invoices or other relevant supporting documents;
and
RABEEERNHMABBAXH  MEFEERKD
EVERE &

o assessing the reasonableness of the net realisable
value of inventories with reference to the recent
selling prices or public quoted prices of the wine
products, on a sample basis.
2EFEHBEMNROEENARME - LMK
AR EFEAERFENSEMY -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matter

HREETSEE

Valuation of deposits paid to suppliers

BT R ER R E AL E

We identified the valuation of deposits paid
to suppliers as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of management’s judgement in
assessing its recoverability.
BABENHERINEeNEEERBREFS
T AREIEEBFT G E AT o A -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, deposits were paid to suppliers
to purchase wine’s products with reference to
business plan and relevant market condition.
BGE M EMERMTARNTIAERE  K2EXEK
FrEIREEm R - MEREAX MRS NRESS
BEMm °

The Group carried out the review on deposits paid
to suppliers at the end of the reporting period and
assessed the recoverability of the deposits paid to
suppliers based on subsequent utilisation of the
deposits paid to suppliers and recent selling prices
or public quoted prices of the wine products.

EREE RN NBEARGNHERNZRS - AR
BREESAANHETNRS LEEBEERL TS
EENLHMEMEANHEINE S A AT EE -

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of
deposits paid to suppliers was HK$85,138,000.
RZZBZ=F=ZA=+—H  #NHEENRSHN
ARTHEI{E 7% 85,138,000 8 7T °

VR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNFTNAHBREASRETER

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
deposits paid to suppliers included:

BAFFESMEERNZENGENETRTEE

o understanding the Group’s key controls over the
assessment of the valuation of the deposits paid
to suppliers;

B SEEAEFGANHEERNEZRS A D
T B R BRI AE

o confirming the carrying amounts of deposits paid
to suppliers by confirmations, on a sample basis;
FRERMAMEEEERIN THEINES
ZBREE

J checking the subsequent utilisation of the
deposits paid to suppliers, on a sample basis,
to the good received notes after the reporting
period; and
BEREHRNEWEERMEE MHEERX
MiReMRERABERL &

J assessing the reasonableness of the recoverability
of the deposits paid to suppliers with reference
to the supporting documents on expected
delivery time of the wine products and recent
selling prices or public quoted prices of the wine
products, on a sample basis.

2 E 5 B #) BB a0 T8 H A B ) R i R
BAELHERNOREEHRARMME  UHMEKELE
FHEWE SN FHER RSB -

Y S ERERERARAE —R-SFER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tse Kit Yan

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P08158

Hong Kong, 20 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERaRrREMEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &

B22EC

=F=ZA=t+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 March

2023 2022
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
BE=A=+—HLEE
—E-=F T
HtaF FHET FET
Revenue g 5 147,727 222,377
Cost of sales HERM A (87,999) (155,813)
Gross profit EH 59,728 66,564
Other income HABKA 6 915 3,421
Other gains and losses, net H b Wz K E518 558 6 34 (138)
Reversal of impairment loss Z SN IETEEEEEE
(impairment loss) under BRAIE T ARERBERD
expected credit loss model on CRIEERE)
trade receivables 651 (466)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (12,445) (16,870)
Administrative expenses TR (21,723) (23,576)
Finance costs B A 7 (5,789) (2,690)
Profit before taxation B H5 Al ) 9 21,371 26,245
Income tax expense FTS BRI 10 (5,036) (5,668)
Profit for the year F N Al 16,335 20,577
Profit (loss) for the year LA AL FER A% F
attributable to: (BE) :
— Owners of the Company o VNGIE 2= DN 16,599 21,244
— Non-controlling interests — JEfE R i (264) (667)
16,335 20,577

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRRRAMZEARRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZ—-Z—

=F=ZA=t+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 March

2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BE=ZA=1+-HLFE
—E-=F TE-F
Hiat FET FHT
Other comprehensive income after tax: i {8 H b 2 E Uk -
Item that may be reclassified AJBEEFT DR
to profit or loss: BammEE -
Exchange differences on translation — HEZ I EFEE LAY
of foreign operations B EER 21 -
Other comprehensive income FREMBERE
for the year, net of tax R TIE 21 -
Total comprehensive income FREHEW=ERE
for the year 16,356 20,577
Total comprehensive income (expense) LA~ ALTEMRFREZER S
for the year attributable to: (FA%) 4% -
— Owners of the Company - RRRHEB A 16,579 21,244
— Non-controlling interests - PR S (223) (667)
16,356 20,577
Earnings per share BRAR
Basic (HK cents) AR GENM) 11 4.15 5.31

Y | A TIRERERERAR —R-=FER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBERE

At 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=F=A=+—H

As at 31 March

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R=A=+—8
—E-=F —E-F
Kia FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment Y E YL 13 129,073 136,209
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 3,763 3,441
Deferred tax assets RIETIBE E 25 1,140 947
Deposits me 17 20,548 11,236
154,524 151,833
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 15 138,765 156,805
Trade receivables B rINRIE 16 44,804 49,138
Other receivables, deposits and Hip Ui zkIE « e K
prepayments TEATFRIE 17 87,063 41,973
Amounts due from related JrE W BE B N B ROE
companies 18 454 468
Bank balances and cash RITEBEIRS 19 5,754 5,783
276,840 254,167
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables g5 ENFE 20 6,610 1,546
Other payables and accrued charges  Hth fE{+ 7018 & fE =+ & F 21 3,155 3,398
Contract liabilities BHaE 22 10,276 10,973
Tax payable JERTTHIE 2,787 10,548
Bank borrowings and bank overdrafts $R{TERMIRITE S 23 140,881 128,303
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 2,700 1,948
Provisions BiE 26 140 640
166,549 157,356
Net current assets RBEETEE 110,291 96,811
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBAE 264,815 248,644

1 ZO Wine's Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBERE

At31 March 2023 RZE=-_=F=F=+—H

As at 31 March

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
R=A=+—8
—EC=HF T F
Jiopz3 FExT FET
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 24 1,011 1,696
Provisions B 26 500 -
1,511 1,696
Net assets BEEFE 263,304 246,948
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital &% 7 27 4,000 4,000
Reserves G 260,596 244,017
Equity attributable to owners AATEEAEMER
of the Company 264,596 248,017
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 25 (1,292) (1,069)
Total equity BrER 263,304 246,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 195
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley

TRz
Director

EZE

-G LElil sl

FUSEEFIS AN ZGAEMEHRE
DEESEeRN T -—F#XA-+8itE
R WRATATREEE

Mr. Chan Sze Tung
PR B
Director

EZE

TEC=FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeEREDE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

=F=ZA=t—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAARE
Exchange Non-
Share Share  fluctuation Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Rx  R0EE EXRBERE  HbRE  ZEd fi  FERER L 3
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAL AT TET FAL AT & TET
(Note)
(Hit)
At 1 April 2021 R_E--EMA-A 4,000 76,298 - 27458 119,017 226,773 (402) 226,371
Profit (loss) and total ERET (BE) k
comprehensive income 4% (%) 88
(expense) for the year - - - - 21,244 21,244 (667) 20,577
At31 March 2022 and R-B-—F-A=1-H
1 April 2022 R=F-Z%NA-H 4,000 76,298 - 27,458 140,261 248,017 (1,069) 246,948
Profit (loss) for the year gt (58) - - - - 16,599 16,599 (264) 16,335
Other comprehensive (expense) EREM2E (B hi :
income for the year:
Exchange differences on AERNEBELH
translation of foreign EXER
operations - - (20) - - (20) 4 21
Total comprehensive (expense) M2 (X ) HE 2%
income for the year - - (20) - 16,599 16,579 223) 16,356
At 31 March 2023 WZFZ=E=f=1-H 4,000 76,298 (20) 27458 156,860 264,596 (1,29) 263,304
Note: Other reserve represents the balance of HK$7,458,000 in Wit HEtEEEEEz—_E—XR"F=ZA=1+—

relation to the shareholder’s contribution in relation to derivative
financial instruments entered between Mr. Ting Chi Wai Roy
(“Mr. Roy Ting”) and the Group during the year ended 31
March 2016 and the effect of reorganisation of HK$20,000,000

during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEHaRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$000 HK$°000
BE=ZA=T-HLEE
—E-=EF —E-F
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before income tax R PRS0 AT 3 A 21,371 26,245
Adjustments for: St RBI R IEEL T
Depreciation of property and equipment EYE LN 7,119 3,710
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREERE 3,374 4,916
(Reversal of impairment loss) B REWRF A EEEE
impairment loss under expected RRIE Tz CREFBERD)
credit losses model on trade receivables B (651) 466
Loss on disposal of property HEMEKEEER
and equipment 5 22
Loss on lease termination MEXRIFREE 52 -
Finance costs A& R AR 5,789 2,690
Bank interest income |ITHEHA (4) (14)
Operating cash flows before movements “ZEESEHH 2L LRERE
in working capital 37,055 38,035
Decrease in inventories FERD 18,040 35,012
(Increase) decrease in other receivables,  EH{BJEUWFIA « 124 RIEFT B
deposits and prepayments (& hn) wA (44,437) 17,958
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities ~ &#&E CE ) 10 (697) 5,643
Decrease in amounts due from JE U % 3R FRIE R
shareholders - 32
Decrease in other payables and H ith FE A RRIB R BT B AR
accrued charges (243) (2,589)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables B S IEE i Ok 2) 5,064 (10,036)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B S REUGRIER A (38n) 4,985 (11,846)
Cash generated from operations HEMERE 19,767 72,209
Income tax paid EFEH (12,990) (753)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RERDFREIFR
ACTIVITIES 6,777 71,456
Y | mEERERERERAE —F-ZFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEBKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZA=T-HLEE
—E-=F —E-—F
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KB EE
Bank interest received BUIRITHIE 4 14
Advances from related companies L QEL2) NS EE 14 3
Purchase of property and equipment BEEMEREE (26) (80,218)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME KRR BEHIA
property and equipment 38 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BETBAE (FTA) R FE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 30 (80,201)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE S B
New bank borrowings raised EERIERITENX 76,895 227,174
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEEENE (240) (249)
Interest paid on bank borrowings EfRITEERIRITESZ B
and bank overdrafts (5,549) (2,441)
Repayment for lease liabilities BEHAEAE (3.583) (5,141)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (71,503) (259,429)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BB EEFTAR S R
ACTIVITIES (3,980) (40,086)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND IR& MIREZEWIG N (R ) F58
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,827 (48,831)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUHReRBEeSED
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (89) 46,780
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EREEF 258
net 53 1,962
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END  FXRIBE MIBEHEY
OF THE YEAR 2,791 (89)
Represented by: BIATRE :
bank balances and cash RITEH KRS 5,754 5,783
bank overdrafts RITEX (2,963) (5,872)
2,791 (89)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wine's Link International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and registered as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
on 22 September 2016 and the shares of the Company
have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the Company’s registered office is at PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands,
and the principal place of business is in 26th Floor, AIA
Financial Centre, 712 Prince Edward Road East, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Shirz Limited (“Shirz"”), a limited company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) which holds 70%
equity interests in the Company, is one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and is wholly owned by
Ms. Wong Chi Lou Shirley (“Ms. Shirley Wong”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
37. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of premium wine and wine
cellar.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2022. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in
a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements are determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share- based
payment”, leasing transactions in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

e isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group recognises revenue mainly from the sales
of wine products at point in time when the customer
obtains control of the wine products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Lease
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
standalone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

J any lease payment made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied
the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments represent fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Lease (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modlifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

J the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property and equipment
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment loss on property and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment loss on property and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment loss on property and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All reqular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e  the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

J the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from shareholders, amounts due
from related companies and bank balances) and financial
guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month (“12m") ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-Z-_=F=A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEEE &)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. Except for those debtors with aggregated
outstanding balances exceeds HK$1,000,000 who are
assessed individually, the lifetime ECL on remaining
debtors are assessed on a collective basis based on the
past due status of the trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. For financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default (continued)

The Group considers that default has occurred
when the instrument is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer of
the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEEEE &)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other
payables, bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme"”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits (continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

3.

Y 75 SR A R T

EXRSETEE #)

BIE ()

i SE B A 4 B B A 4R A AR
ZRERHERERER  HAEET
RHIE RN EE AEHERTA
AR RIS RAE GRS - B
18 B R 2 AT AR B 2 R A A
ERIEAE - @H AR RMARB
HABAEE R F - AEHR
A RS A E B o

BELERIBEE < FREETIRAHE B
REH  XATBRIEAAR TMER
1t M AR RS T IR 2 2 B0 ek AR
DEERRT AR, °

BELEHRBAEENBEHRNEERE
FEREERHERAZHE (RN
AR B R B 2 AR M S K EURR 2
BiE (RBK)) TE »

SFERERAEENME B RREHRAR
SEBHRAREMRE @K HEFTE
EEMBEEREEZA N ZHHEE
% o

(RREZEAIR o7 -4 Ez Kok b Saal i
MIREEEAMNIAE EEE - M
ZEBENABER-RBHBEK
HIFTISTAERE - RIRRERREE
HEEEHEH -

—E-=5EH

151



152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-_ZT-_=F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred as the Group does not
have any qualifying assets.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure that would be required to restore the
assets, Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HEZZT-_=F=-A=+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management of the
Group is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets within the next twelve
months.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on ageing
analysis to identify slow-moving inventories and based
on the current market condition and recent selling price
of inventories to determine the net realisable values.
Management of the Group will reassess the estimations
on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and write down for obsolete inventories will be
made when necessary.

There is no written-off of inventories during the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). As at 31 March 2023,
the carrying amount of inventories is HK$138,765,000
(2022: HK$156,805,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of deposits paid to the suppliers

As disclosed in note 17, the Group had deposits paid to
the suppliers for the purchase of wines with reference to
business plan and relevant market condition. The Group
carried out the review on deposits paid to suppliers
at the end of the reporting period and assessed the
recoverability of the deposits paid to suppliers based on
subsequent utilisation of the deposits paid to suppliers
and recent selling prices or public quoted prices of the
wine products.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
no impairment was made on the deposits paid to
suppliers. The carrying amount of deposits paid to the
suppliers as at 31 March 2023 is HK$85,138,000 (2022:
HK$40,135,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group measured lifetime ECL
on (i) debtors with aggregated outstanding balances
exceeding HK$1,000,000 on an individual basis; and (ii)
the remaining debtors on a collective basis by grouping
debtors based on the past due status. Estimated loss
rates are based on past due status of the debtors
and forward looking information. The assessment of
credit risk of trade receivables involves high degree of
estimation uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment loss
may arise accordingly in future periods.

The ECL assessment is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 33 and 16,
respectively. The carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$44,804,000 (2022: HK$49,138,000) net of
impairment of HK$128,000 (2022: HK$779,000) as at 31
March 2023.

4.

Y 75 SR A R T

AT AR R 2 EERIR
(&)

A HEE XN 2 &S 2 RE
PN EE T PRI ER - 2 E XK
ERBETR . AEEFERRERESE
BEmRAREENNRE  ARED
AR HERRBNEEANZES
BREBERIBANERENEZEE R
BEAEmMIREERARMERFN
AN HERNREHRRE N -

HEZZS-_=Fk=-ZT=-__F=A4
=+—HIEFEHME  BEHREE
XN EERE RZTZ=
F=ZRA=1+—H mfEEEITE
& HBREE 485,138,000/ 70 (—F
— 4 :40,135,000/&7C) °

g ZEWFIE 2 FHRE
AEEERES () RERNEEFE
B AR 1B R 4 2 4858 1B 1,000,00078
TCHI AR & (i) IR 58 BAAR S i
BRESADEREBEEFENG
TREKERNZHEREEEE - &
BB ERDIBRIBEEBS AR BRI R
AIEHEERE - BHERKFEEE
B ES REE AT T -
BEBRAKBASRBENERKSH
TEH > AlRE R R R IRAIHELE
AR EEIBREARERIERE -

EHEEERFHEHES LA
o BATEHEEBERAEEES
EWHEZ ER DB RMFE33 %16
WE-WN-_BE-_=F=A=+—8"
E 5 TE 2 BREE A 44,804,000
Bt (ZF Z — 4 :49,138,00078
7T) - K R E 128,000 T (=&
4 :779,0007T) °

—E-=5EH

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL 5.
INFORMATION

Revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
was disclosed as follows:

b
BEPERNWEZ T BERENT

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$°000
BE=ZA=+—-HLEE
—ZE=-= . —
FET FET
Sales of wines products BEREMHEE
— Wine products - BEBE®D 70,069 186,049
— Other alcoholic beverages - EAB B GR 77,009 35,378
— Wine accessory products - B AR ER 649 950
147,727 222,377
Geographical markets: WEMS
Hong Kong 0 146,850 222,228
The People’s Republic of China hEE ARAFE ([FHE])
(the “PRC") 877 149
Timing of revenue recognition: WS RA
A point in time Ry B4 147,727 222,377
For sales of wine products, other alcoholic beverages and REEEER HtERRmREE

wine accessory products, revenue is recognised when
the control of goods is transferred, being when the
goods are delivered to the customer’s specific location.
Transportation and other related activities that incurred
before customers obtain control of the related products
are considered as fulfilment activities. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customers as this represents the Group’s right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due. The contracts
signed with the customers are fixed price contracts. The
normal credit term is 30 to 120 days upon delivery.

All the Group's contracts with customers with unsatisfied
performance obligations have original expected duration
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at
31 March 2023 and 2022 is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL 5. WERDHER &)
INFORMATION (continued)
Segmental information DEER
The Group's operations are mainly derived from sale and RERN AEEzEEFERBER
distribution of wine products, other alcoholic beverages BHERDHEBEBEER - HMER
and wine accessory products in Hong Kong during K RBEREHER - RERD A
the year. For the purposes of resources allocation and RRBFEME  BREERKSE
performance assessment, the chief operating decision (IR EEEXZTHAR) ERAEE
maker (i.e. the chief executive of the Group) reviews the BREZRMI3IMESE 2 BRI HRE
overall results and financial position of the Group as a B BREERPBIRR - Bt -
whole prepared based on same accounting policies set rEBEEE-—RHE—LEHEH - AW
out in note 3. Accordingly, the Group has only one single ERUE—DHZ2VE—DHT -
operating segment and no further analysis of this single
segment is presented.
Geographical information wEER
No geographical segment information is presented as the MEZ2IESEER - REARARE
Group's revenue are all derived most from Hong Kong Bz R XN Em B K5 IR
and small part from the PRC based on the location of BEARNEDREFTRH  BEAKHE
goods delivered and the Group's property and equipment CYERBHEREECEBUESS
are all located in Hong Kong by physical location of BEIREE o
assets.
Information about major customers EBEXEEFZEH
No individual customer was accounted for over 10% of RREFEASERENZEPEREER
the Group’s total revenue during both years. R Z 10% A £ -
OTHER INCOME/OTHER GAINS AND 6. HMWA HitlzEREE
LOSSES, NET R
Other income H g A
Year ended 31 March
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE=ZA=1+-HLFE
—E-=F o F
FET FET
Bank interest income |ITHBUA 4 14
Government grant X I #68 Bf) 250 200
Service income i3 ON - 2,934
Others HAt 661 273
915 3,421

Y | RS TRERZRARAR —R-SFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEERME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &

6. OTHER INCOME/OTHER GAINS AND 6.

LOSSES, NET (continued)

Other income (continued)

During the current year, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$250,000 (2022: HK$200,000)
in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies provided by the

Hong Kong government.

E-E-—HF=-A=1+—HIFE

HAW A H At zs K &R
B ()
HAWA ()

200,000 7T) °

RAFEE - REBERBEEBRFR
80 37 2L 51K 7 5 4R R RE TR IR

JiF %5 B) 250,000/ T (—E = —

=

Other gains and losses, net Hibhzm R EEFEE
Year ended 31 March
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$°000
BE=ZA=1+—HLHFE
—E-=HF —E-F
FHET FET
Loss on disposal of property HEYERRENERE
and equipment (5) (22)
Loss on lease termination MEXIEREE (52) -
Net exchange gain (loss) ME N e (E518) #3 91 (116)
34 (138)
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RERA
Year ended 31 March
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE=RA=1+—-HLFE
—E-=F —E-—
FHET FEIT
The finance costs represent interest on: BIEKAIEB B IR HE 2
%U/%\ :
— bank borrowings - RITER
and bank overdrafts FIR1TIES 5,549 2,441
— lease liabilities -HEak 240 249
5,789 2,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FeMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EX - XETHAEBREES
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS <
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (a) EERFTETHAEZEHE
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors RAEE - ENERTARRQF]
and chief executive of the Company during the year EERFTETHRAB ZFH M
were as follows: ™
Salaries, Retirement
allowance benefits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits  contributions Total
¥4 28 BB
EZHS REMEF TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiEx FEx
For the year ended BE-Z-=F
31 March 2023 ZR=1T-AL%EE
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Shirley Wong (note (i) Tamat (i) - 480 18 498
Mr. Chan Sze Tung REREE - 720 18 738
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung EHALt - - - -
Ms. Ho Tsz Wan (note (ii) mERLL (W) - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Mr. Wong Hin Wing (note (ii) BEBEEEE (W) 110 - - 110
Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon (note (iv) BUES %4 (f () 120 - - 120
Mr. Liu Kin Wai (note (1)) YREEE (W) 10 - - 10
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie RE&¥zt 120 - - 120

360 1,200 36 1,596

Y G TEERcRERAR —e==f%% 159



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FeMBRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

8.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EX - XETHAEBREES
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) < &)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHRAEZHME
(continued) (#&)
Salaries, Retirement
allowance benefits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee henefits contributions Tota
g4 28 RINER
Tk REMEF HE S et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr
For the year ended HE-T__%
31 March 2022 ZR=1-RL%E
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Shirley Wong (note (i) TEBTL (W) - 480 18 498
Mr. Chan Sze Tung R REE - 564 18 582
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Ms. Yeung Chi Hung BEITT - - - -
Ms. Ho Tsz Wan (note (ii) MRt (W2 a) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors By IFH{TEE
Mr. Wong Hin Wing (note (i) ERRE (W (i) 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Wai Yan Ronald (note (vi) ~ BRELC %4 (W W) 80 - - 80
Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon (note (iv)  BUESCR4E (B () 40 - - 40
Ms. Chan Man Ki Maggie REHLT 120 - - 120
360 1,044 36 1,440
Notes: st

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Ms. Shirley Wong acts as the chief executive of the
Company and her emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by her as the
chief executive of the Company.

Ms. Ho Tsz Wan resigned on 31 May 2022.

Mr. Wong Hin Wing resigned on 1 March 2023.

Mr. Chan Cham Man Simon was appointed as
independent non-executive director on 1 December
2021.

Mr. Liu Kin Wai was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 1 March 2023.

Mr. Chan Wai Yan Ronald resigned on 1 December
2021.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

FTEBRZLTHEARA ZTTHAR
B BEXFRBEZESFHERE
FRPE AN R BT AR L P R AR
ZF

itz tR T -7 A
=+ —HBHE -

HEAEER_ZE_==H—H
BHE -

BREYEER T - —F+ - A —
REZTABYIENITES -

BREAEER B -_=F=A—H
BLERBIUFNTES -

ECEER T -_—F+=-A—
HEHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

The emoluments of executive directors shown above
were for the directors’ services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as the directors
of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no
performance related bonus was paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company (2022: HK$60,000).

During both years, no remuneration was paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors of the Company has waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2022:
one) director of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023, whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in (a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2022: four) individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2023, are as follows:

8. EE - FETHAEBREES
M€ (2)

(a)

(b)

EEREFRTRAEZHME
(%)

EXFAIRZATEEREIRE
ENARRARAEEZ ERER
BERZESR - EXFIRZIE
HWITEFRS IARBFER/LRR
BlZEE 2RI - EXFAIRZHE
VIRMITEFBRIRANEER
ARR2EFEZIRT

RBE-_T-_=F=A=+—H
LEFE  AEBHMERARRE
EYMEAEREBED (=
— % : 60,000/87T) ©

RWEFEEAR  AEBERERAR
REAEEMEREFH - AER
MAKRINARE B 1R 2 £EBh 3k
ERRERE - MEARRES
R TR EE R B B EE A AR B

EEME

REBZE-E-_=F#=A=+—
BIEFE AARSHFMAL
BEANG—REE (T
F:—F) HMSEHALX
QZEBE - HE_T_-_=F=
A=Z+—HBLEFE  HHBMUEA
T (ZT==F:WR) 2Me
DRIET

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE
—E-=H :%:;
FET FET
Salaries, allowance and other e ENHEHMER
benefits 3,438 2,731
Retirement benefits scheme RONEFIET IR
contributions 920 68
3,528 2,799
B TTEEEEEESESESS  BEEEEIRERERAR —F-=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEERME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

=F=ZA=t+—RHIFE

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 8.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The number of the highest paid non-director
employees whose emoluments fell within the

following band is as follows:

EE FETBRAEREER
M (2
(b) BEME (&)

XNTHEEREZHESMEA
BIABINT

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
Number of Number of
employees employees
BE=ZA=T-HLEE
—EBE-=HF —E-—
ESAE BAZ
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 4 4

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FeMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBAIGEF
Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$°000

BE=ZA=T-HLEE
—E-=F —E-F
FET FET

Profit before taxation has been arrived B& AT % F Ty i1

at after charging: THI|RIBAER
Auditor's remuneration ZE BN & 709 723
Cost of inventories recognised as an R AR S 2 FERA

expense 87,999 155,813
Depreciation of property and MEREZBITE (B 13)

equipment (note 13) 7.119 3,710
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE (Mt 14)

(note 14) 3,374 4,916
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) BEHU (HES8) 1,596 1,440
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TR

Salaries and other benefits e MEAMmEF 10,161 12,886

Retirement benefits scheme RIREAFT B

contributions 439 553
Total staff costs 48 8 TR A 12,196 14,879

10. FRIEHRAX

Year ended 31 March

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE=ZRA=1+-HLFE
—E-=F TE T4
FAET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EBFEM
— Current tax - BVEARR IR 5,229 6,072
— Overprovision in prior years - A - (231)
Deferred tax credit (note 25) BETRIBER R (M1a225) (193) (173)
5,036 5,668

Y | A TIRERERERAR —R-=FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

=F=ZA=t—HILFE

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the )

first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and

at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 78 M 1F

million for the qualifying group entity. The profits of the
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
regime will be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation as follows:

10. FTEHBEX (&)
EREEEET

JERBEFIZ16.5% T &
BERMEHERZEBETRE 2 EHME
BH—TE16.5% EF -

meE - fAatERHK
BMZE2BEBTTIR825%TEE
S RiEB2AB BT A

o FEAF

F A2 BTS2 AT ELBR 7 Al A
BER

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE=A=1+-—HLEE
—EZ=F —_ET——
FET FET
Profit before taxation BR A58 B A 21,371 26,245
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BREBNEHE16.5% 5t
Tax rate of 16.5% Z IR 3,526 4,330
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBMARTAINBHAL 2
and expenses not deductible 7%+ 1,675 1,734
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rates ~ BEMAFIEHEHE 2 FE
regime in Hong Kong (165) (165)
Overprovision in respect of BEFEBREEE
prior years - (231)
Income tax expense for the year FEMEHRAX 5,036 5,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

FeMEERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

1. SREF
ARQBEE AL GREARRF TR
AT ERIEE

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
BE=ZA=+—-HLEE
—E-=F —EF-—
FHET FET
Earnings: B -
Profit for the year attributable to STESRERZNAFERZ
owners of the Company for the RREHEB ABIEFER R
purpose of basic earnings per share 16,599 21,244

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
‘000 '000
BE=A=1+—-HLEE
—ECD=F =
i TFhE
Number of shares: RIHEE -
Number of ordinary shares for the FTEGRERBFFT
purpose of basic earnings per share {2 E@EKEE 400,000 400,000

No diluted earnings per share for both years were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in
issue during both years.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during both years, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the

NREEENDEELRERESR
Al EARTIEEE N ETE
EEER -

12- Hﬁ/%\
R EFEER - W8 IR S2 3K
EABRETFTARRZEARR - B
SHEARE T EZRIR M ERRE

reporting period (2022: Nil).

-______________________________________________________AEEE g

—EooF )

(===

TEC=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FeMBRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. MMERFKE
Leasehold Offic  Furnitureand ~ Computer Motor
Warehouse ~ improvements  equipment fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
£E  HEMEIR  BOTRR  GER%E Elik it} it
HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$000 K000
TEr T#r Tr Tt T#r T#r T
C0ST WA
At 1 Apri 2021 N-E--£EA-B - 1091 803 1314 2210 47 20,01
Additions RE 135,760 161 06 115 88 - 136,190
Disposal ik - - - - (615) - (615)
At31 March 2002 and 1 Aprl 202 R-F-E=A=1-6
k-2--EWA-H 135,760 11,01 869 1429 1743 47 155,646
Additions RE - - I 14 5 - %
Disposa il (3) - - - ) - (61)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZZE=f=1-H 135,722 11,012 876 1443 1725 47 155,611
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION e
At1 Apri 2021 R-F-EmA-A - 8,49 475 95 1,607 4757 16,320
Provided for the year KERMER 1810 1179 235 126 34 16 3710
Disposal ik - - - - (593) - (593)
A3 March 202 and 1 Aprl 202 WZFZZ#=R=1-R
k-EzZEmA-A 1810 9,675 710 (Al 1358 47 19437
Provided for the year TEENER 5429 1397 7 93 3 - 7119
Disposa hil3 - - - - (19) - (1)
At 31 March 2023 O s o 1239 11072 787 1,204 1463 47 26,538
CARRYING VALUES L]
At 31 March 2023 O Sl o 128,483 - 89 239 161 - 129073
At31 March 2022 RZEZZE=A=1-H 133950 1397 159 318 385 - 136,209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ERRE (&)
The above items of property and equipment are A EW % LB AEIE B TR T Y F =
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates NERELENE -
per annum:
Warehouse 25 years BE 254
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the HEHRETR MEHANES F
lease terms or 5 years ZEREE
Office equipment 20% N 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% FREREKE 20%
Computer equipment 20% to 50% B B 20% £ 50%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
As at 31 March 2023, a property with a carrying value of RZFE-_=F=A=+—H "  KHE
HK$128,483,000 (2022: HK$133,950,000) was charged £128,483,0008 T (Z & = =
to secure certain borrowings of the Group (note 23). 133,950,000/ 7T) MW E B R IF1E
RASEE TEROER (FFE23) -
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EAEEE
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEME AE @t
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2023 A\—E-_=f=f=1+-H
Carrying amount REE 3,510 253 3,763
As at 31 March 2022 R-Z--—f#=RA=1-H
Carrying amount ETNE] 3,441 - 3,441
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE-B-=5=A=t+-BLFE
Depreciation charge nEER 3,263 111 3,374
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-B-_E=A=1+-HLEFE
Depreciation charge nEER 4,916 - 4,916

Year ended 31 March
2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
BE=A=+—HLEE
—E-=E T F

FET FET
Expense relating to short-term leases B2 EIFAE AR 2,643 2,706
Total cash outflow for lease HEZRe R A% 6,466 6,428
Addition to right-of-use assets NEFAEEE 5,630 2,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #EHZ—-Z—

14.

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases office premises, retail
stores and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to
3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly enters into short-term leases for
warehouses and retail stores. As at 31 March 2023 and
2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed above.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$3,711,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$3,763,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022: lease liabilities
of HK$3,644,000 are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$3,441,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no rent
concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
COVID-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in
HKFRS 16.46B, were provided by the lessors of retail
stores to the Group (2022: Nil).

—FEZAZTHUEFE

14. FRAREE &)

RMEFE  AEEOHERLE
X TEERABUARER - HE
BRZEEHER/IEIF - HEK
RREREEER  BESERT
[ {6 3K B AR A o IO BE S T A B R Ad T
ARERARERER  A&EEAA
M2 ERILETE SR A RHIIT2H
R -

AEBEHRARERTEET LR
HE R-T-=—Fh-_FT-_—_F=

A=+—H8 EHHEHEEHE Xk
BEEHEE NS HEEAA
HE

oy RZEBE-_=F=A=+—H -
FHE B &3,711,0007% T B AH B (F A
B FE 3,763,000/ T —HHER (—ZF
— 4 : A& & E3,644,000/8 7T
HE B8 {55 FH 8 & 7= 3,441,000 7 T —HF
R) - REBEABENHEEENE

?WE AN - 70 B 1 I A e N fr] 22
c FHEBETSHIEEENEMSR -

BE-_Z-_=F=A=+—HItF
B ZEEHzEAAMERAESR
RERFAERFSRIEEEZETZEM
EEXNESER (AFAE BV KR
HAERZE 16.46B EHMBEIEME) (=ZF
ZITF ) o

INVENTORIES 15. B&
As at 31 March
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
K=B=+-—H
—E-=F —E-=
FET FET
Wine products BEBEM 122,044 134,518
Other alcoholic beverages Hth) P55 8RR 15,980 21,247
Wine accessory products BERRGESR 41 1,040
138,765 156,805

Wine’s Link International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FeMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HE-—ZT_=F=-A=+—HIFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. ESZEWFIE

As at 31 March
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$°000

R=A=+—8
—E-=F B ——
FET FET
Gross carrying amount FREAARE 44,932 49,917
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBEEE (128) (779)
44,804 49,138
The Group’s credit terms of 30 to 120 days are granted AEERTEBSEFP ZEEHA30
to its trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis F1208 - REZHH (HERER
of the trade receivables, net of allowance for credit HHIR RS 2 B B EESE) 2
losses, presented based on the invoice dates, which 52 B 5 RIFIE (MR EEBER

approximated to the respective dates on which revenue ) 2BREDTNT -

was recognised, at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31 March

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000

R=B=+—8H

—EC=F —_E-—

FHT FHET
0 to 30 days 0=30H 14,597 9,706
31 to 60 days 31260H 52 7,929
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 13 13,682
91 to 180 days 91£=180H 28,002 14,922
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 2,140 2,899
44,804 49,138

Y G TEEReRERAT —e==f5% 169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—-ZT—

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 16.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group's trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$20,956,000 (2022: HK$22,049,000) which are
past due. Out of the past due balances, HK$2,140,000
(2022: HK$6,359,000) has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default. With reference
to historical records, past experience and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information
of those customers, the directors of the Company do
not consider these receivables as credit-impaired as
these customers have a good business relationship with
the Group and satisfactory settlement history on their
recurring overdue records.

=F=ZA=t—HILFE

B2 RWRE (&)

RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H8"'4&X&
BrESREURERERTES
/20,956,000 L (ZF = = F :
22,049,000870) < #1BRFE UL AR 5K ©
g B &E 8RR 0 2,140,0008 7T (=
T — — 4 :6,359,000/8 7T) @ HA
90BN F B RILEIEEY -
K2 EZERXPNESL L - BEL
BRI ESHNAE R BIKIEREE
B ARREZTUTREZERY
REEHBREERE  REAZEER
FPEASEEFERFRIFEBHEEFE  BiK
EREUBBLEZ BERLHERAE

Details of impairment assessment as at 31 March 2023 RZE_=ZFRK-_FT__F=A
and 2022 are set out in note 33. E‘